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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

Uri A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9S44 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 u'svw.dhhs.nh.sov
Katji S. Fox
Director

August 1, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTEO ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NAMl New Hampshire (VC
#166630), Concord, NH to continue the provision of Family Mutual Support Services; support
the ongoing efforts of the Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator; and to add
coordination and logistical support of Critical Incident Stress Management trainings, by
increasing the price limitation by $148,954 from $2,922,403 to $3,071,357 with no change to the
contract completion date of June 30,2025, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30, 2021, item #18
as amended on June 15, 2022, item #22; and amended on May 17, 2023, item #25; and most
recently amended on December 20, 2023, item #31.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is amending the scope of services
and adding funding that Increases the price limitation by more than 10% of the original contract
amount; this request therefore must be identified as sole source in accordance with Manual of
Procedures (MOP) 150. The original contract was competitively bid.

The purpose of this request is to add scope and funding to allow the Contractor to organize
and coordinate the logistics of approximately 14 additional trainings in Critical Incident Stress
Management (CISM), a program that teaches intervention skills to support individuals who have
experienced traumatic events and disasters. The additional trainings will allow a CISM train-the-
tralner pathway.

In addition, funding is being added for the Contractor to continue to support the efforts of
the Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator through the No Cost Extension of the
Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic Planning Grant. CCBHCs provide high-quality care
for people with any mental health or substance use disorder. The Clinics assess and help people
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by taking a "whole health" approach, considering individuals social and physical health needs
while providing integrated behavioral health care.
New Hampshire is in the process of implementing CCBHCs through community mental health
centers, most recently receiving a four-year implementation grant to expand CCBHCs. The
Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator solicits input from a diverse group of
individuals with lived experience, leads the Stakeholder Advisory Council, and provides additional
outreach and engagement activities for the program.

Approximately 200 individuals will be engaged to provide input on the CCBHC model, and
approximately 165 participants will receive CISM trainings through June 30, 2025.

The Contractor will schedule all CISM trainings, arrange lodging accommodations for
training participants, market training opportunities, manage onsite training logistics, and ensure
evaluations are completed. Additionally, the Contractor will continue supporting community and
stakeholder engagement by soliciting input from individuals with lived experience of .behavioral
health disorders, minority groups and other relevant stakeholders to assist the Department with
collecting the necessary feedback to further implement the CCBHC model.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of data reports,
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department.

Should.the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Contractor will be unable
to schedule and coordinate CISM trainings on behalf of the Department and would be limited in
its ability to continue soliciting input from individuals and stakeholders to inform the continued
implementation of the CCBHC model.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.829. FAIN H79Sfyi087622
and ALN 93.958, FAIN B09SM089203.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully si^mitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citieens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Family Mutual Support Services (RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04)
FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

05-95^92-922010-41190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, FAMILY MUTUAL
SUPPORT SERVICES

lOOVo General Funds

Vendor Name; NAM! NH Vendor# 166630-B001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 • $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $547,637.00 • $0.00 $547,637.00

2025- 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 92204119 $547,637.00 $0.00 $547,637.00

Subtotal $2,140,548.00 $0.00 $2,140,548.00

05-95-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

100% General Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor# 166630rB001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00
2023 . 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00

Subtotal $677,395.00 $0.00 $677,395.00

05-95-092-922010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, SAMHSA GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor #166630-B001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92201915 $104,460.00 $0.00 $104,460.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92201915 $0.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

Subtotal $104,460.00 $30,000.00 $134,460.00

05-95-092-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH

BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor# 166630-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92264120 $0.00 $118,954.00 $118,954.00

Subtotal SO. 00 $118,954.00 $118,954.00

TOTAL $2,922,403.00 $148,954.00 $3,071,357.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and NAMI New
Hampshire ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (Item #18). as amended on June 15, 2022 (Item #22), and amended on May 17, 2023
(Item #25), and most recently amended on December 20, 2023 (Item #31), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based'upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS,- pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,071,357

2. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services: by adding Section 1.37, to read:

1.37. Critical Incident Stress Management Training Coordination

1.37.1 The Contractor, in collaboration with SAMSHA's Mental Health Block Grant
(MHBG) Program Planner, the ICISF, and the Department as needed, shall
coordinate logistics for all Critical Incident Stress Management (CISM)
trainings to support the Department's goal of developing and sustaining CISM
Trainers statewide, including but not limited to:

1.37.1.1 Scheduling training dates, times, and locations throughout the
State that promote increased accessibility for more attendees.

1.37.1.2 Arranging for food/refreshments.

1.37.1.3 Booking lodging accommodations for attendees.

1.37.2 The Contractor shall market training opportunities via email, social media, or
as otherwise requested by the Department to audiences identified by the
Department.

1.37.3 The Contractor shall facilitate participant online registration via HIPAA
compliant SurveyMonkey only, including, but not limited to:

1.37.3.1 Confirming participant eligibility for lodging accommodations at the
hotel where the training Is being held by verifying the distance from
participant's residence to the training venue Is a minimum of 50
miles.

1.37.3.2 Closely monitoring the number of participants eligible for lodging
accommodations for each training to ensure the availability of
funding for lodging throughout the entire training cycle (estimated
through June 30, 2025, or as otherwise determined by the
Department).

1.37.4 The Contractor shall attend each training to coordinate onsite logistics
including, but not limited to:

1.37.4.1 Managing in-person, daily sign-in attendance sheets, whi^must
NAMI New Hampshire A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ^
RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-0VA04 Page 1 of 5 Date®^^^^^®^^
v7.12.23
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Include participants names, email addresses, and signatures.

1.37.4.2 Ensuring participants sign in daily.

1.37.4.3 Scanning and sending daily sign-in attendance sheets to the
Department and ICISF.

1.37.4.4 Identifying participants who are interested in taking the CISM
exam.

1.37.4.5 In collaboration with ICISF, collect and submit to the Department
a list of the names of training participants who are interested in the
Train-the-Trainer path.

1.37.5 Post trainings, the Contractor shall coordinate with ICISF to ensure
evaluations are completed and provided to the Department.

1.37.6 The Contractor shall ensure the sharing of personally identifiable
information with the Department is conducted through the Department's
designated SFTP site, or as otherwise directed by the Department.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services; by adding Sections 1.38 through 1.40, to read:

1.38. Confidential Data

1.38.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as set
by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Information Security
Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

1.38.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering services through
this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view, store, and
discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws and

regulations and the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The
Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department
request.

/

1.39. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.39.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in conducting
a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system{s)/application(s)/web
portal(s)/website{s) or Department system(s)/application(s)/web
portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information
(Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the
Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at minirhum, the
following:

1.39.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

1.39.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

1.39.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

1.39.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

1.39.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.39.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collection.

NAMI New Hampshire A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04 Page 2 of 5 Date
v7.12.23
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processing or storage of PH.

1.40. Website and Social Media

1.40.1. The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications Bureau to
ensure that any social media or website designed, created, or managed on behalf
of the Department meets all Department and NH DolT website and social media
requirements and policies.

1.40.2. The Contractor agrees Protected Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable
Information (PII),.or other Confidential Information solicited either by social media
or the website that is maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed
unless expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of PHI, Pll,
or other Confidential Information is subject to the terms of the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associate Agreement
signed by the parties, and all applicable Department and federal law, rules, and
agreements. Unless specifically required by the Agreement and unless clear notice
is provided to users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that site
visitation must not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media

analytics or marketing.

1.40.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

1.40.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State WWW site, including copyright to
all Data and Information, shall remain with the State of New Hampshire.
The State of New Hampshire shall also retain all right, title and interest
in any user interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the
WWW pages. All WWW pages and any other Data or information shall,
where applicable, display the State of New Hampshire's copyright.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:

This Agreement is funded by:

a. 4.2% Federal funds, New Hampshire Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic
Planning Year, as awarded on 3/15/23, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration, Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.829, FAIN
H79SM087622.

b. 3.8% Federal funds, BSCA Center for Mental Health Block Grants, as awarded on
8/23/23, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,
Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.958, FAIN B09SM089203.

c. 92% General funds.

5. Add Exhibit C-10, Amendment #4, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
•  reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-11, Amendment #4, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

NAMI New Hampshire A-S-1.3 Conlractor Initials

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04 Paqe3of5 Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

8/13/2024

Date

—OecuSigfMd by:

Name: Katja s. fox

Title. rector

NAMI New Hampshire

8/13/2024

Date

—OocuSignad by:

Name:

Title:

irns

Executive Director

NAMI New Hampshire

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OcwuSigned by:

8/14/2024 I
TagTjuwnw lUM,,,

Date Name; Robyn cuarino

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NAM! New Hampshire A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A04 PageSofS
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-10, Amendment #4, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMI New Hampshire
Budget Request for: CISM Training Coordination

Budget Period 07/01/2024-06/30/2025
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.1

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Venue and lncidentals-(2) In person (3)
day trainings-TS attendees each

$49,044
2. Venue and lncidentals-(4) In person (2)
day trainings-30 attendees each

$40,272
3. Virtual Training(4) 1-Day De-Escalation
Trainings-25 attendees $5,056

4. Venue and lncidentals-(4) In person
MHFA trainings one-day -25 attendees
each

$13,768
Total Direct Costs $108,140

Total Indirect Costs $10,814

TOTAL $118,954

RFP-2022-DBH.01-FAMIL-01-A04

Contractor Initials;
ss

Date:
8/5/2024
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Exhibit C-11, Amendment #4. Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMI New Hampshire

Budget Request for: Family Mutual Support Services

Budget Period 7/1/2024 -6/30/2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)21%

LIneMtem Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $19,835
2. Fringe Benefits ■ $4,889
3. Consultants $0
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0
5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0

5.{b) Supplies - Lab SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Other (please specify) . $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0
Total Direct Costs $24,724

Total Indirect Costs $5,276

TOTAL $30,000

Contractor Initials;

r—OS

RFP-2022-DBH-01.FAMIL-01-A04 Date:
8/5/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan. Sccrelar)' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 24. 1982. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretar\' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62349

Certificate Number: 0006747280

Sj
A?

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of August A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretan' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

,  Joseph Keenan
hereby certify that;

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer pf NAMI New Hampshire
(Corporation/LLC Name)

oHowing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
August 2 20^^ . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

2. The followinc

held on
(Date)

Susan Steamsvu I tu. I nat (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of NAMI NeW Hampshire contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: August 2, 2024

Signature of Elected Officer

Name: Joseph Keenan

Title: President Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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AC^RD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

03/19/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Eleanor Splnazzola
(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

AOMESS- ^'Sd'^'^pi'^^ol3@esinsurance.net

INSURER(S) APFORDINC COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Co

INSURED

National Alliance on Mental Illness, NAMI-NH

65 North State Street

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B Techrx>logy Insurance Co 42376

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL

|N§0
5UBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DDrYYYY)

POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

E  1 X| OCCUR

PHPK2668445 05/07/2024 05/07/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAO
DALUGETOKLNTED
PREMISES (Ea oecMfTannai

S 100,000

MED EXP (Anv one oersonl 5 5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
j 1.000.000

GSrn. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY n Q LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 3.000.000

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGG J 3.000,000
AbMol Cnsir. CissSpc S 1.000.000

AU1OMOBILE UABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddenll S

ANYALfTO

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

HEDULED

n^os

BODILY INJURY (Per perton) S

SL
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per acddent) $

Atn-OS ONLY
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenil s.

s

A

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB905005 05/07/2024 05/07/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000.000

AGGREGATE - $

DED X RETENTIONS 10.000 $

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE rTTI
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yat. descritM uodar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below -

N/A TES4314240 10/10/2023 10/10/2024

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 5 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 5 500,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 5 500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Rtmvlis SchtdtJl*. may boatuchtd If niora tpaco It roqulrtd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH. Department of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MISSION

NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots organization working to improve the lives of all people

affected by mental illness and suicide through support, education and advocacy.

VISION

We envision a future where pieople affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and

are able to;

• Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary for recovery; •

Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and •

Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination,

GUIDING VALUES

Compassion. We offer compassion and empathy to all who are affected by mental illness and
suicide.

Dignity. We believe everyone deserves to be free from judgment, and strive to foster hope
always.

Inclusiveness. We respect people, value the voice of individuals with lived experience, and are

committed to equality and diversity.

Collaboration. We are committed to a culture of teamwork and collaboration with diverse

partners, working toward shared goals.

Integrity. We believe in openness and transparency, stewarding our resources, and being
accountable to the individuals and families we serve, our members, and our funders.

Find Help, Find Hope.
NAMI New Hampshire • 85 North State Street • Concord, NH 03301
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

NAM! New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NAM! New Hampshire (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
NAMl New Hampshire as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

Wc conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gpvernmeni Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of NAMl New Hampshire and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. Wc believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities ofManagement for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NAMl New Hampshire's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year afler the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole arc free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but Is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and



Governmeni Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures' in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of NAMl New Hampshire's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Concjude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about NAMl New Hampshire's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of lime.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not. a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Other Ri^^ori\x\%Rfi(\\s\TQ6 by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28,
2023, on our consideration of NAMl New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, arid grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering NAMl New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 28, 2023



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

2023 2022

CURRENT ASSETS;

Cash

Investments

. Accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Land

Building and improvements

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation

V  PROPERTY AND EQUIPM ENT, NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Investments

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

202,257

1,437,882

175,491

418,116

2,233,746

290,800

1,177,690

8,218

604

1,477,312

(252,259)

1,225,053

929,259

929,259

551,943

881,555

268.685

572.686

2,274,869

290,800

1,177,690

8,218

604

1,477,312

(222,015)

1,255,297

821,634

821,634

$ 4,388,058 $ 4,351,800

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Refundable grant

Current portion of mortgage notes payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES;

Mortgage notes payable, less current portion

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES .

NET.ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board designated

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes tofinancial statements

$  108,662

384,731

33,333

17,022

543,748

293,883

293,883

837,631

2,621,168

929,259

3,550,427

213,569

,273,190

152,083
16,137

654,979

317,905

317,905

972,884

2,557,282

821,634

3,378,916

S 4,388,058 , $ 4,351,800



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

CHANCES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUE AND SUPPORT:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies
Contributions

Interest and dividends

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments

In-kind donations

Fundraising events

Training services

Membership dues •

-Other revenue

Net assets released from donor restrictions

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

2023

2,884.587

828,635

21,441

66,148

29,187

223,030

1,604,084

3,557

94,677

5,755,346

2022

2,516,451

663,216

283

(94,158)

200,565

1,439,974

3,968

92,654

43,522

4,866.475

EXPENSES:

PROGRAM SERVICES:

Community and Public Policy Relations

Connect Suicide Prevention Project

Public Education

TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES

278,839

900,271

3,122,205

4,301,315

218,090

863,686

2,679,246

3,761,022

SUPPORTING SERVICES:

Management and General

Fundraising

TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL EXPENSES

876,577

405,943

1,282,520

5,583,835

683,297

343,561

1,026,858

4,787,880

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 171,51 78,595

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets released from donor restrictions

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

(43,522)

(43,522)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS-JULY I

171,51!

3,378,916

35,073

3,343,843

NET ASSETS-JUNE 30 S  3,550,427 $ 3.378.916

See notes Idfinancial slalemenls
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Program Services Supporting Services
Community Connect

and Public Suicide Total Management Total

• Policy Prevention Public Program and Supporting Total

Relations Project Education Services General Fundraisinc Services Expenses

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES;

Salaries $  218,072 $  317,550 $  2,149,771 $ 2,685,393 S  648,033 $  187,795 $  835,828 $  3,521,221
Employee benefits 14,795 34,428 273,321 322,544 71,278 22,524 93,802 416,346
Payroll taxes 14,711 24,890 159,852 199,453 68,867 12,700 81,567 281,020

247,578 376,868 2,582,944 3,207,390 788,178 223,019 1,011,197 4,218,587

OTHER EXPENSES:

Accounting 815 2,605 10,948 14,368 2,754 4,077 6,831 21,199
Audit fees 875 2,832 10,325 14,032 2,460 1,050 3,510 17,542

Legal and membership fees 150 1,928 1,030 3,108 3,251 1,032 4,283 7,391
Contracted services 5,139 402,612 134,776 542,527 10,838 24,821 35,659 578,186
Client services/training 1,966 49,810 84,530 136,306 1,072 201 1,273 137,579
Software subscriptions .1,835 7,020 20,451 29,306 3,310 39,199 42,509 71,815
StafT conferences and conventions 173 1,050 l-,594 2,817 4,017 4,477 8,494 11,311
Occupancy 1,549 4,833 - 17,658 24,040 5,080 1,859 6,939 30,979
OfTice supplies 2,292 7,404 40,459 50,155 6,524 11,231 17,755 67,910
Maintenance 4,050 1,268 46,232 51,550 24,651 4,860 29,511 81,061
Fundraising/Evcnt supplies 1,806 1,806 25,120 25,120 26,926
Depreciation 1,510 4,735 17,514 23,759 4,673 1,812 6,485 30,244
Food supplies 3,850 3,413 13,499 20,762 1,546 15,225 16,771 37,533
Equipment rental 730 2,318 9,784 12,832 2,208 988 3,196 16,028
Equipment maintenance 2,925 2,925 3,071 3,071 5,996
Advertising 207 207 - 207

Printing 1,775 381 2,156 234 7.500 7,734 9,890
Telephone and communications 2,113 6,179 41,872 50,164 3,198 2,715 5,913 56,077

Postage and shipping 713 128 2,599 3,440 1,621 3,685 5,306 8,746
Staff transportation 681 22,007. 68,756 91,444 3,919 2,631 6,550 97,994
Insurance 1,045 3,261 11,915 16,221 3,428 1,254 4,682 . 20,903
In-kind goods and services - 29,187 29,187 29,187
Other expenditures - 544 544 544

Total $  278,839 $  900,271 $  3,122,205 $ 4,301,315 $  876,577 $  405,943 $  1,282,520 $  5,583,835

See notes tofinancial statements
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Services Supporting Services

Community Connect

and Public Suicide Total Management Total

Policy Prevention Public Program and Supporting Total

Relations Proiect Education Services General Fundraisine Services Exoenses

ALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries $  161,790 $  310,117 $  1,859,793 $ 2,331,700 $  427,114 $  155,695 $  582,809 S 2,914,509
Employee benefits 21,940 53,485 287,303 362,728 28,552 19,775 48,327 411,055

Payroll ta.xes 11,469 22,607 139,717 173,793 44,601 10,051 54,652 228,445

195,199 386,209 2,286,813 2,868,221 500,267 185,521 685,788 3,554,009

)THER EXPENSES:

Accounting 508 2,158 6,729 9,395 2,412 889 3,301 12,696

Audit fees 800 3,400 10,600 14,800 3,800 1,400 ,  5,200 20,000

Legal and membership fees 1,964 1,715 3,679 6,156 6,156 9,835

Contracted services 696 390,990 57,378 449,064 41,970 48,260 90,230 539,294

Client services/training 3,774 13,023 88,394 105,191 5,458 5,741 1 1,199 116,390

SoHware subscriptions 322 .  1,248 28,676 30,246 14,155 10,444 24,599 54,845

Staff conferences and conventions 340 1,691 3,004 5,035 12,669 2,628 15,297 20,332

Occupancy 1,289 5,479 17,082 23,850 6,210 2,256 8,466 32,316

OfTice supplies 4,221 11,681 32,390 48,292 15,82! .  7.493 23,314 71,606

Maintenance 5,244 22,286 69,483 97,013 24,908 9,177 34,085 131,098

Fundraising/Event supplies - 27,826 27,826 27,826

Depreciation 1,296 5,511 11,291 18,098 6,158 2,269 8,427 26,525

Food supplies 86 1,610 1,696 5,458 20,673 26,131 27,827

Equipment rental 562 2,389 7,449 10,400 2,670 984 3,654 14,054

Equipment maintenance .  4,712 4,712 8,458 338 8,796 13,508

Advertising 275 275 66 66 341

Printing 275 1,277 3.650 5,202 202 7,613 7,815 13,017

Telephone and communications 2,819 5,187 27,659 35,665 22,115 1,657 23,772 59,437

Postage and shipping 51 223 3,187 3,461 1,114 5,392 6,506 9,967

Staff transportation 8 5,149 11,865 17,022 285 1,415 1,700 18,722

Insurance 520 2,211 6,894 9,625 2,472 911 3,383 13,008

Other expenditures 80 80 539 608 1,147 1,227

Total $  218,090 $  863,686 $  2,679,246 $  3,761,022 $  683,297 $  343,561 $  1,026,858 S 4,787,880

See notes tofinancial statements

4



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS.
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from grants, contributions, and contracts

Interest income received

Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to suppliers and others

Interest paid

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investments

Sale of investments

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Payments on mortgage notes payable
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, ending of year

2023

5,756,968

21,441

(3,501,829)

(2,000,088)
(12,237)

264,255

(697,804)

100,000

(597,804)

2022

$ 4,902,621

283

(2,812,084)

(1,703,026)

(16,254)

371,540

(261,803)

(261,803)

(16,137) (84,417)

(16,137) (84,417)

(349,686) 25,320

551,943 526,623

$  202,257 $ 551,943

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Transactions:
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Forgiveness of debt

66,148

7,000

$  (94,158)

73,148 .$ (94.158)

See notes tofinancial statements
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30,2023 and 2022

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness) was founded as a nonprofit corporation in
1982 and is committed to improving the lives of all people affected by mental illness and suicide through
support, education and advocacy. As a grassroots coalition of people living with mental illness and their
families, NAMI NH has over 40 years of service to Granite State children, transition age youth, adults,
and seniors, offering statewide activities which provide education/training and support to individuals,
families and communities. The organization also promotes and provides advocacy and empowerment at
the individual/family level as well as at the systems level by offering members, volunteers, and
stakeholders training and graduated opportunities to build confidence in advocacy and leadership skills.
Last year, NAMI NH provided support, education and advocacy to over 15,000 individuals. The financial,
support for these programs and activities comes from a variety of sources that include governmental and
private foundation grants, contract services, donations, and membership dues.

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and are able to:
Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary for recovery;
Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and

•  Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination.

In support of our mission, NAMI NH is dedicated to providing support, education and advocacy equitably
without discrimination against, or harassment of, any person on the basis of race, color, national origin,
language, religion, sex, age, disability, citizenship, marital status, creed, sexual orientation, gender
expression or gender identity (individuals' preferred gender will be respected, and individuals will be
referred to by their name and pronoun of choice, whenever feasible) or any other characteristic protected
by federal or state law. Any such discrimiination or harassment is prohibited and will not be tolerated.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of NAMI New Hampshire conform to accounting principles generally .accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit entities except as indicated hereaffer. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncernents pertaining
to Nol-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

V



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Net Assets Without Donor Reslrictiom - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions arc temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions' expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of aetivitics as net assets released from
restrictions.

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

NAMI New Hampshire receives significant volunteer time and efforts. The value of these volunteer
efforts, while critical to the success of its mission, are not reflected in the financial statements because the
accounting criteria for recognition of such volunteer efforts have not been satisfied.

Donated goods and professional ser\'ices are recorded as both revenues and expenses at their estimated
fair value. The Entity received donated supplies and professional services in support of fundraising
activities totaling $29,,187 and -SO- during the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries, employee benefits, payroll taxes, accounting, audit
fees, legal fees, occupancy, maintenance, depreciation, ■ equipment rental, equipment maintenance,
telephone, and insurance are distributed based on a cost allocation process. Expenses are initially charged
to each program or supporting function based on time and effort. Expenses associated with management
and general are then allocated among the program and supporting services based on one of two criteria.
The first criteria used is to allocate indirect costs based on the indirect cost rate established by the grantor.
If there is no indirect rate specified, the overhead rate as it appears on the IRS form 990 of the preceding
year will be used.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents consists of demand deposits, cash
on hand and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of money market accounts, certificates of deposits, mutual funds,
and exchange traded funds, are carried at their market value at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022.
Investments reported as non-current represent amounts designated by the Board as held for reserves.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments are reflected in the staterpents of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements with a cost in excess of $1,000 and to charge to operations currently for expenditures
which do not extend the lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful

lives as follows:

Years

Building and improvements 39
Equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 7-10

Depreciation expense was $30,244 and $26,525 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Compensated Absences

Full-time and part-time employees are entitled to paid vacation based on their length of employment.
Employees are allowed to carry forward a maximum of 10 vacation days. Upon termination of
employment, full-time employees will receive up to five days of accrued/unused vacation pay. Accrued
vacation pay amounted to $58,356 and $47,248 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. An allowance for uncollected
receivables of $4,000 has been recorded as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been detennined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accouming for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2023 and, accordingly, docs not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value ofFinancial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried in the financial statements
at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently shoil-term nature of the transactions. The
fair values determined for financial instruments arc estimates, which for certain accounts may differ
significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income when cash is received or
based on donor restrictions as described previously. Interest income is recognized monthly as accrued.
The Entity recognizes revenue from contracts with customers in the form of training and consultation
services provided to organizations and individuals. Revenue for training and consultation services are
recognized at a point in time as services are rendered. Amounts recognized are based on amounts
invoiced. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

The Entity also has revenue derived from governmental contracts for support services provided to
individuals. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized when the Entity has met the performance
requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental contracts, services are invoiced on a
monthly basis in arrears, however, a receivable may be recorded in advance of amounts invoiced if all
other performance requirements have been satisfied. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

NOTE 2—ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance (Accounting
Standards Codification [ASC] 842, Leases) to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-usc (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on the balance
sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets and lease
liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases. Under the standard, disclosures are
required to meet the objective of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The Entity may, from time to time, enter into various
agreements as lessee for use of equipment. Management has evaluated its lease agreements and
determined that the effect of implementing ASC 842 related to such agreements is immaterial to the
financial statements.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 3—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested with the
objective of providing a mix of income and growth, but overall to protect the organization's accumulated
wealth. Investments can be made in the following securities: certificates of deposit, money market mutual
funds, exchange traded funds, and corporate bonds. Sources of liquidity include cash, investments, and
"accounts receivable.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Entity considers all expenditures related to its ongoing programs and activities as well as the conduct of
services undertaken to support those activities to be general,expenditures.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations. Amounts not
available include the internal board designated funds. In the event the need arises to utilize the board
designated funds for liquidity purposes, the funds could be drawn upon by a vote of the Finance
Committee.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the financial position date, comprise the following:

2023 2022

Cash $  202,257 S  551,943
Investments 2,367,141 1,703,189
Accounts receivable, net 175,491 268,685

Grants receivable 418,116 572,686

Total Financial Assets 3,163,005 3,096,503
Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions - -

Board designated funds (929,259) (821,634)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 2,233,746 $■2,274,869

NOTE 4—SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local fi nancial institutions located in New Hampshire. The Entity's
cash deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total of $250,000
at each fi nancial institution. As of June 30, 2023, deposits with financial institutions were fully insured
within FDIC insurance limits.

NOTE 5—INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measuremenis
f

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:,
•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used'to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
docs not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Money market funds, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, and equities: Valued at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Certificates of deposit and corporate debt securities: Valued using a market approach valuation technique
which incorporates third-party pricing services and other relevant obscr\'able information such as market
interest rates, yield curves, prepayment risk and credit risk generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities in valuing these types of investments.

The methods described above may. produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to detennine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair

value measurement at the reporting date.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets measured at fair
value as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market mutual funds $ 1,140,464 $ 1,140,464
Mutual funds 431,478 431,478
Exchange traded funds 411,053 411,053
Certificates of deposit $ 379,152 379,152
Corporate debt securities ' 4,994 4,994

Total assets at fair value $_L282j99^ $__384J4£ ^ 2,367,141

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2022 )
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market mutual funds $• 917,637 $ 917,637
Mutual funds 368,677 368,677
Exchange traded funds 370,173 370,173

Certificates of deposit S 41,694 41,694

Corporate debt securities ^ 5,008 5,008
Total assets at fair value $ 1,656,487 $ 46,702 S $ 1,703,189

NOTE 6—MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the mortgage notes payable consist of the following:

2023 2022

$348,000 mortgage note payable, secured by propert)', payable
in monthly installments of $2,364 including interest through March 2028.
Interest is fixed at 5.35% through March 2028, with interest thereafter
based on the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Advance rate plus 3%. $ 219,905 $ 236,042

S140,000 mortgage note payable to the City of Concord, New
Hampshire is non-interest bearing and is secured by the property.
The Entity is a subrecipient of Community Development Block
Grant funds which were used to create an ADA compliant
community education space. Repayment of the funds will be

required in the event of noncompliance with the grant. The note

will be forgiven over a period of 20 years through December 31, 2034. 91,000 98,000
$ 310,905 $ 334,042

Under the terms of the mortgage note payable for the property located at 87 North State Street, Coneord
New Hampshire, with a balance outstanding as of June 30, 2023 of 5219,905, the Entity must maintain a
loan to value ratio of less than 80%. Additionally, the Entity fnust demonstrate a debt service coverage
ratio of at least 1.00. As of June 30, 2023, the Entity was in compliance with the debt requirements.
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Following are the maturities of the mortgage notes payable as of June 30, 2023:

Year Ending

June 30. Amount

2024 $ 17,022
2025 17,955

2026 18,940
2027 19,978

2028 21,074
Thereafter 124,936

S  219,905

NOTE 7—BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

Board designated net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Contingency fund $ 779,259 $ 671,634
• Fixed Asset fund 100,000 100,000
Special Opportunity fund 50,000 50,000

$  929.259 . $ 821,634

NOTE 8—REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following tables provide information about balances of receivables, contract assets, and contract
liabilities associated with contracts with customers for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

Contract Contract

Receivables Assets Liabilities

June 30,2023 $ 175,491 $ - $

June 30,2022 $ 268,685 S - $

July 1,2021 . $ 355,275 S - $ -

NOTE 9—CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
directly from the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Entity
recognized revenue of S2,884,587 and $2,516,452, respectively, from fees and grants from governmental
agencies. These represented 50% and 52% of total revenue and support without donor restrictions for the
years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the
grant agreements and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates from training
services, contributions, in-kind donations, and other income.

NOTE 10—RETIREM ENT PLAN

The Entity has a deferred compensation retirement plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Under, the terms of the plan, employee contributions are made through a salary reduction plan.
During the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Entity's contribution to the plan was equal to up to
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

3.0% of each eligible employee's annual salary. The Entity contributed $65,021 and $51,064 for the years
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 11—CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of additional
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this time, although the
Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 12—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 28, 2023 which is the date the financial

statements were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE j

jNAMI New Hampshire

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

Pass Through Payments from the City of Manchester, New Hampshire
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

Assistance

Listing

Number

93.243

93.243

93.243

Pass-Through

Entity

Identifying

Number

N/A

#lH79SM0822IO-03

#IH79SM0822l0-04

Expenditures

$  789,750

41,534

140,1 17

181,651

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Congressional Directives

Pass Through Payments from the University of New Hampshire
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services

Total Department of Health and Human Scr>'iccs

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

93.493

93.958

N/A

#PZL0190

971,401

106,250

140,228

,217,879

$  1,217,879

See notes to schedule of expenditures offederal awards
15



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

NOTE 1—BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying.Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity-of NAM! New Hampshire under programs of the federal government for the. year ended
June 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
■Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of NAMI New Hampshire, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of NAMI New Hampshire.

NOTE 2— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note I to NAMI New Hampshire's financial statements. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Unifonn Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3—INDIRECT COST RATE

NAMI New Hampshire has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost fate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4—RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards has been reported in the NAMI New Hampshire's
fl nancial statements as program services and management and,general expenses, as applicable.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOyERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

NAMI New Hampshire

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NAMI New
Hampshire (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2023 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 28,
2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NAMI New Hampshire's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NAM! New Hampshire's financial statements are
free from material misstatemcnt, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the efTcctivcness of the organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 28, 2023
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

NAMI New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited NAMI Now Hampshire's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified
as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of NAMI New Hampshire's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. NAMI New
Hampshire's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, NAMI New Hampshire complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basisfor Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards

and the Unifonn Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of NAMI New Hampshire and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
wc have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of NAMI New Hampshire's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities ofManagementfor Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of.
laws, statutes, regulations, rules,- and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to NAMI New
Hampshire's federal programs.
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Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
•compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on NAM! New Hampshire's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if-therc is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about NAMl New Hampshire's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In. performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Unifonn Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding NAMl New Hampshire's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of NAMl New Hampshire's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Unifonn Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMl New Hampshire's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Complianee

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected; on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

20



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
ofintemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 28, 2023
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NAMI New Hampshire
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section I~Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

X no

X  none reported

X  no

Federal A wards

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs;

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

yes X no
yes X none reported

Unmodified

yes X  no

Identification of major federal program(s):

Assistance Listing Number(s)

93.243

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of
Regional and National Significance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: S 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  yes no
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Section II—Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section HI—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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Kim Murdoch; MBA
Director of Communications and Special Projects, NAMi New Hampshire

(previous: Communications Manager; Walk Manager; Deveiopment Manager)
2012 - Present {full-time since 2017}

•  Led stakeholder engagement initiatives around development of the NH Peer Workforce

Advancement Plan - including convening Peer Support Agencies, Community Mental Health

Centers, Community Advocates, Leadership of NH DHHS BMHS, and many other individuals with

lived experience working across the mental health system.

•  From concept to branding to launch, led creation of the Onward NH and 603 Stories campaigns

to connect Granite Staters experiencing early serious mental illness to help and hope.

•  Created popular dedicated mental health resource platforms and collateral in support of the

BIPOC/AAPI and LGBTQIA+ communities.

•  Manage NAMI NH's social media (with 15K-*- followers), curate twice monthly e-news, and

oversee external communications for 60+ employee organization.

•  Partnering with the NH Department of Corrections, with federal funding via NH DHHS,

coordinated multi-year delivery of mental health and suicide prevention training for personnel
across the county and state corrections system, in support of justice-involved individuals.

Director, Murdoch Social Capital

2010 - Present (pro bono for nonprofits since joining NAMI NH full-time in 2017)
•  Assist nonprofit and for-profit organizations with strategic development and execution,

comprehensive communication needs, and production of community events.

•  Completed independent survey of (155) downtown Concord business owners for Re-Thinking
Main Street Project.

•  Secured earned media for clients In 75+ news outlets Internationally.

•  Event Manager highlights;

o  LakeFest: Raft-a-Palooza (Client: NH LAKES)

•  98% of attendees planned to participate again; set Guinness World Record for

largest simultaneous launch of canoes and kayaks.

o  Fire Truck Pull (Concord Public Safety Foundation)

•  Created event and oversaw production; secured funds to purchase LUCAS Hands

Free CPR device for Concord Fire Department.

Director of Philanthropy | KImball Jenkins Estate

2016-2017

•  From concept to planning to production, led a fun team to debut a Summertime ART

Sensorlum, 7 days packed full of workshops, performances, meals, art, and a myriad of activities

to engage all five senses.

•  Introduced pop-up dinners to the Mansion at Kimball Jenkins, serving to leverage sponsors and

new champions while securing the Estate's cultural and historic relevance to the community.

• Welcomed residents, city leaders, businesses, and nonprofits with diverse agendas to the table

to initiate formal creation, designation, and promotion of a North Main Historic District.

Project Manager | Concord 250

2014-2016

• • Sourced, marketed, and produced the yearlong weekly Concord Chats series of events, focused

on community arts, culture, and history.

• Wrote a weekly newspaper column for the Concord Monitor highlighting the city's first 250

years.-

•  Led a stellar team to present gala events to open and close the year, a community art

Installation, and time capsule curation/burial.



•  Remotely managed (from Alaska) a three-day City Celebration and Old Home Weekend

featuring a concert, festival, and parade.

Interim Executive Director | Market Days Festival Director, Intown Concord

2011-2013

•  Secured grant funding from corporate and Individual foundations to Invest In downtown,

partnered with Board to leverage fundraising initiatives, and oversaw Intown Concord's

transition from Main Street Concord.

•  Produced 2012 Market Days Festival, which set records for profit, attendance (50,000+), vendor

participation, and Included first-ever Local Food, Wine, &. Beer Tent. As Director of the 2013

Market Days Festival, orchestrated the overnight recovery from a devastating microburst,
successfully opening the Festival on time the next morning.

Executive Director, Centennial Senior Center

2009-2011

•  Created partnership with Concord Housing Authority and Concord Police Department to

Increase safety and community at downtown public housing buildings for older adults and

individuals living with mental Illness; applied for and obtained grant funding for the initiative.

•  Orchestrated organization's public recovery following the unpopular 2006 closure of an

unsustainable custom-built facility.

•  Developed community-wide comprehensive online resource directory of services, events, and

activities for Greater Concord seniors, their families, and providers.

Director of Marketing and Logistics, NH Wings of Hope, Concord, NH

2006 - 2008

•  Envisioned and executed marketing campaign resulting in media estimated 200,000 attendees

at 2007 Wings of Hope Air Show.

•  Coordinated near-flawless logistical elements to support air show performers, sponsors, staff,

volunteers, and 200,000 attendees.

Contract Event Manager, National Subaru Women's Winter Tour, Watervlile Valley, NH

2004-2005

•  Tripled attendance over prior year at the 2005 Winter Tour.

•  Orchestrated aggressive media schedule and produced (3) major events.

Senior Accountant, J. Jill Group, Tllton, NH

2000-2004

•  Skillfully managed recurring annual physical inventory for 350,000+ square foot distribution

center.

•  Responsible for sales tax filings, in addition to related reporting and accounting, for 120+ stores

In 30+ states.

Education

MBA - Specialization In International Business, University of New Hampshire, 2009

Studied in the Netherlands, Gerrhany and Belgium.

Board Experience

•  Rock On Foundation (Founding Board Member/Treasurer)

•  Concord Public Safety Foundation (Founding Board Member/Board Chair)

•  ConcordTV (Treasurer)

•  Leadership Greater Concord (Chair)



Susan L. Steams

QUALIFICATIONS

■  Lived experience as a family member and advocate
■  Strong management and leadership skills in non-profit organizations
■  Proven ability to build, foster, and lead teams during challenging times
■  Experienced working with boards of directors, grassroots volunteers, and policymakers
■  Expertise in program development, implementation, and evaluation
■  Experienced working with diverse individuals and communities
■ Understanding of tlie intersection of mental illness, disability, inequality, abuse, justice

system involvement, and family issues

WORK EXPERIENCE

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness), Concord, New Hampshire
Executive Director, 2022 - Present

Principal administrator of NAMI NH responsible for advancing the vision and mission of NAMI
NH as set by the Board of Directors. Provides overall leadership to assist and support the staff
members and volunteers in discharging the highest quality work in support of Granite Staters
affected by mental illness and suicide.

Deputy Director, 2016 - 2022; Director of Philanthropy, 2012-2016
Responsible for program development and implementation, including evaluation and quality
improvement, directs organizational efforts in the state's seven Integrated Delivery Networks,
interfaces with criminal justice partners, oversees fund development and grant writing.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, New Hampshire
Director of Development, 2007 - 2013

Developed strategies to diversify revenue and sustain progi-ams; responsible for grant writing and
management; provided operational management of collaborative projects including supportive
housing, mental health court, and primary and behavioral health care integration.

Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, New Hampshire
Director of Proposal Development, 2005-2007

Responsible for project design, proposal development and writing, as well as building
partnerships with community providers and stakeholders.

Guardian ad Litem Board, Concord, New Hampshire
Trainer, contracted, 2004-2010

Trained Guardians ad Litem on Mental Illness & Recovery; Effective Strategies for Working
with Parents with Mental Illness; and Domestic Violence.

Disabilities Rights Center, Concord, New Hampshire
Director, Coalition for Family Law & Mental Health Project, 2001-2006
Oversaw coalition-building and project management to promote legal equity for parents with
mental illness, ensure adequate assessment of parenting competency, and improve outcomes.



Whole ViUage Family Resource Center, Plymouth, New Hampshire
Executive Director, 1998-2001
Oversaw collaborative project for supporting families with multiple risk factors for negative
outcomes, including fund development and evaluation efforts.

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Concord, NH
Program Specialist, 1993-1998
Responsible for providing training on domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking to various
audiences, including law enforcement, EMS, child protective services, and other providers;
oversaw evaluation efforts for fourteen certified crisis centers across the state.

Task Force Against Domestic & Sexual Violence, Plymouth, NH
Administrative Director; 1988-1993
Oversaw agency operations, including finance, human resources, and grant/project management.

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITTRS

Children's Behavioral Health Resource Center Leadership Team, Member & NAMI NH
Principal Investigator, 2021 - present

Mental Health Technology Transfer Center - New England Advisory Team
(HHS Region 1 - SAMHSA), Member, 2019 - present

Governor's Commission on Disability, Member, 2016 - present
Appointed by Governor Margaret Hassan

Lakes Region Mental Health, Board Member & Past President, 2007 - present

EDUCATfON

University of Massachusetts, Amherst, School of Education. Graduate Studies in Consulting
& Counseling Psychology, 1986 - 1987.

University of Massachusetts, Amherst. B.A. in English, 1986.

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS & PRESENTATTON.S

2020 Perspectives - Interview with NAMI NH Deputy Director, Susan Steams,
https://www.voutube.com/watch?v=MDvKLoQ6dXR.

2018 SB 51- Establishing a commission to study expanding mental health courts statewide
https://bit.lv/3nDV7i5.

2009 Reclaiming Our Future: A Pathwayfor Treating Co-Occurring Mental Health and
Substance Use Disorders in New Hampshire's Adolescents and Young Adults, NAMI
New Hampshire. htfps://bit.lv/3xmWXHt.

2008 Raising Matthew: A Mother Reflects on Medicating Her Son, No Health without
■ Mental Health, Community Council of Nashua, NH, reprinted in Genesis Times, 2009.

2005 The Struggle for Justice: Seeking Legal Equity for Parents with Mental Illness, RAP
Sheet. The Latest in Disability Research, Advocacy, Policy, and Practice, Winter Issue.
https://drcnh.Org/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/2005WinterRAP.ndf.

1994 Mediation and Domestic Violence: Considerations for Mediators and Battered
Women, New Hampshire Bar Journal, Vol. 35, No. 2, p. 32, June.

2 I Steams



TAMMY E. MURRAY

Skills

• Operational management

•  Infrastructure planning

• Documentation compliance

• Accounting princlpies

understanding

• Risk management

• Reporting skilis

• Strategic pianning

• Financiai & Human Resource

administration

• Executive ieadership

• Team buiiding and leadership

' Financiai ieadership

• Strategic business pianning

• Revenue growth

• Policy development

• Construction Project

Management

Education and Training

Bachelor of Science;

Business Administration,

Accounting

BRYANT UNIVERSITY

Professional

Certifications

Certified internal Auditor

Designation

Summary

Resourceful Non-ProfIt Chief Financiai Officer prepared to leverage twenty
years of experience to support operations of mission driven organization.
Expertise in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, grant compliance,

reporting and auditing. Human Resource experience in talent and

performance management, compensation and benefits, compliance and
workplace safety, Strong leader with calm presence and.ability to build

relationships across all organizational levels.

Experience

NAMi New Hampshire - Chief Financial Officer

Concord, New Hampshire

06/2001 • Current

•  Integral member of senior management team providing strategic vision,
leading complex nonprofit organization with multiple funding sources
including federal, state contracts, Medicaid eligible services and an

affiliated structure with diverse program areas delivered nationally.
• Developed forward-looking, predictive models and activity-based

financial analyses to provide insight Into the organization's operations

and business plans while managing organizational risk.

•  Implemented controls for Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable and

General Ledger, ensuring accuracy, consistency and compliance with

funders' requirements including Office of Management and Budget
Uniform Administrative requirements, cost principles and audit

requlrementforfederal awards.

• Achieved unqualified audit opinions, with no material weaknesses or

deficiencies during entire tenure of position.

' Developed financial measurement standard and system to monitor

performance against goals including budgeting, forecasting and business
models.

• Engaged finance committee In investment, and asset management,

growing activities by $1.5M.

• Led and executed real estate acquisitions, renovations of organization's

two facilities, reducing overhead expenses and enhancing

organization's visibility.

• Designed succession planning, talent review and performance

management processes across the organization.

• Developed and managed employee benefit programs including 403(b) plans
ensuring compliance with all regulatory requirements.

•  Identified IT system upgrade requirements to accommodate expanding

growth, and compliance.

' Oversaw acquisition of copyright and trademark designations for

evidenced based training products to sustain revenue generation

activities.
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UMMY E. MURRAYcont.

OfficeMax, Incorporated - Field Operations Manager
Cleveland, Ohio

OfflceMax, Incorporated - Senior Internal Auditor

Cleveland, Ohio

Baifour Company - Coilection Services Manager

Attleboro, Massachusetts

Baifour Company - Senior Auditor/Accountant

Attleboro, Massachusetts

The Jan Companies - Staff Accountant

Cranston, Rhode Island .

Awards

Business Excellence in Non Profit Management Sep 2019, New Hampsihire
Business Review

Outstanding Women in Business Award Nominee Jan 2019, New Hampshire
Business Review

Excellence In Non Profit Management Jun 2008, The Corporate Fund



Liz PROFILE

Hodgkins
Adult Program

Director

Dedicated, mission-driven program and volunteer manager who
effectively engages community members, staff, and volunteer
leaders. Adept at assessing community needs and matching with
organization goals to meet grant and strategic plan deliverables.
Specializes in maintaining strong and respectful relationships with
stakeholders.

WORK EXPERIENCE

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science/ Psychology

Keene State College
1992-1996 ■

Certified Volunteer Administrator

April 2023

EXPERTISE

Event Planning

Project Management

Volunteer Administration

Problem-Solving

Leadership

Critical Thinking

Teamwork

Adult Program Director,
NAMI NH I Concord, NH | 2022- Current

Oversee administration of volunteers throughout the organization,
working across teams to create agency wide volunteer practices. Manage
NAMI signature programs, grants, and grassroots volunteer operations.
•  Utilizing volunteer administration best practices to work towards

agency strategic plan goals.
•  Closing workforce and organizational capacity challenges and

gaps by strategically recruiting, training, and engaging skilled
volunteers.

Education and Support Program Coordinator
. NAMI NH I Concord, NH j 2014 - 2022

Coordinate and oversee state-wide events and programs that are
facilitated by trained volunteers. Utilizing the strategic plan as a guide,
seeking opportunities to grow our community connections and access to
programming that benefits Granite Staters affected by mental illness and
suicide.

•  Manage staff working on program deliverables, providing timely
, and effective feedback on their performance.

•  Maintain relationships with valuable organization volunteers,
offering opportunities to be part of our mission driven
programming.

•  Recruit, screen, and train new volunteers and connect them with

mentors in their community. Organize and facilitate quarterly
meetings to maintain their connection to the organization.

•  Plan, coordinate, and execute the NAMI NH Annual Conference.

Training and Event Coordinator
Independent Contractor | Concord, NH | 2008-2012

Facilitated group process to plan and implement conference and event
programs. Maintained strict budget and work guidelines for
competehcy-based outcomes. Researched and contracted with
nationally recognized training experts. Connected and communicated

with staff to increase their buy in to programming changes.

Program Director
NFI North | Concord, NH | 2002-2006

Planned and implemented trainings and conference events for statewide
child welfare staff according to strict contract guidelines. Oversight of
contract budget. Revised outdated child welfare training, implementing
nationally recognized child welfare new employee training.



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: . NAM) New Hampshire

NAME JOB TITLE ,
n

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Susan Steams Executive Director $0 $160,000

Liz Modgkins Deputy Director $0 $127,000

Tammy Murray Chief Financial Officer $0 $144,442

Kim Murdoch Director of Communication $11,369 $90,950
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

LoriA.Weim .129 PLEASANT STIIEKT. CONCORD. NH 03301
CoanlnlOKr 603-271-9544 1-800-8^-3345 EU 9344

Fai: 603*271^332 TDDAcmi: 1:800-735-2964 www,dhht.n!i.(Ov
KaUiS.Foi
. Direcior

November 12, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hohorable Council

State House

Concord, Now Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departfnent of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health;
to amend an existing cohtracl with NAMI New Hampshire (VC#166630). Concord, NH to add
funds to support family mutual support and suicide prevention services, by increasing the price
limitation by $50,000 from $2,672,403 to $2,922,403 with no change to the contract completion
date of Jufle 30.2025, effective upori Governor and Council approval. 100% General Furxls.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30,2021, item #18.
amended on June 15. 2022. item #22, and most recently amended on May 17, 2023. item #25.'

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025. with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
slate fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and Justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPUNATION

The purpose of this request is to add funding so that family mutual support providers can
keep pace with the.cost of service provision. Pursuant to House Bill (HB) 2. Section 550 (2023),
funds W6ro, made evallable for this purpose. The Contractor will continue providing statewide
family mutual support, public education and suicide prevention services through support,
education and advocacy for adults and families affected by Serious Mental Illness (SMI), as well
as children and their families affected by Serious Emotional Disturbance (SED).

; Approximately 22,000 individuals will be served from July 1.2023 through June 30. 2025.

The Corrtractor will continue to provide peer-run support groups, education classes,
trainings, and advocacy opportunities for Individuals and families affected by mental illness
throughout the state. They will also continue to provide an anay of training sessions on best
practices for suicide prevention and post intervention for Individuals, family members, service
providers, arid the general public. In addition, crisis intenrention, suicide Intervention, and peer
leadership training sessions wil be provided.

The Contractor wrill continue providing information to the public through web-based media,
and distribute electronic and printed materials, upon approval by the Department, on topics (hat
include family support and education programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss.-

The Contractor participates on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
mernber organization, and will support implementation of the goals of the suicide prevention
council's strategic plan.
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His Exoellen<9. Governor Chrt^topher T, Sununu
and the HonoraUe CouncD

Page 2 of 2

The Department will continue to monitor these services through the review of data reports,
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department to ensure the Contractor
provides:

• A minimum of eight (8) training sessions each mwth;

• One-on-one family support programming for a minimum of 126 Individuals
annually:

• Web-based support groups to serve a minimum of 120 families/careglvers
annually; ,

•  Family, friends, peer, and caregiver education classes for a minimum of 175
'  participants annually;

•  Responses to a minimum of 1,000 phone, e-mall, social media messaging, and/or
in-person inquiries annually; and

•  Community presentations to a minimum of 400 family members and the general
public annually on a variety of topics related to promoting awareness of treatment

.  and recovery, suicide prevention and early interventions, and advocacy.

•  In-Reach services to residents at the Oiencliff Home through an In-Reach Liaison .
who, in collaboration with the in-reach case manager, assists residents with
exploring steps to transitloning back Into the community.

• One (1) full time Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coorjfinator
(Engagement Coordinator) to inform the development of the NH CCBHC model.

. Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be unable
to provide the Contractor with additional funding to keep pace with the cost of service provision.
This may impact services to individuals with severe mental illness, their families, and parents and
families of children with serious emotional disturbances, which could r^ult in an increase in the
rate of suicides statewide.

Area served: Statewide.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services'Miseion it to Join eommiiniiies and families'
'  ill praising opporitmilies for eilitens to achieve health and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9pF^673^1EB^80815674471

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01.A02

FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

05-95-Od2-922010-41190000 HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC8 DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, FAMILY MUTUAL
SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class TiUo Job Number. Current Amount

Increase

fOecrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 ■  S522.637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for F^ogram Services 92204119 $522,637.00 $25,000.00 $547,637.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204119 $522,637.00 S25.000.DO $547,637.00

Sub Total 52.090.548.00 $50,000.00 $2,140,548.00

05.96-092-922010^1170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN 8VCS DEPT OF,
HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVOF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

100% General Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor# 106630-8001 ,
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class TiUe Job Number - Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for F^ogram Services 92204117 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00
. 2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00
2024- 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 • $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,485.00
2025 102-500731 - • Contracts for Program Services 92204117 ■  $192,465.00 $0.00 $192,465.00

• Sub Total $677,395.00 SO.OO $677,395.00

06-9S.092-922010.19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DiV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, SAMHSA GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Vendor Name: NAMI NH Vendor #166630-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class. Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase -

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2024 .  102-500731 Contracts for FTogram Services *  TBD $104,460.00 $0.00 $104,460.00
2025 . 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD . $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sub Total $104,460.00 $0.00 $104,460.00

TOTAL $2,872.403.00) $60,000.00| $2,922,403.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Family Mutual Support Services contract is by and between the State of New
- Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and NAMI New
Hampshire ("the Contractor"): ,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30. 2021 (Item #18), as amended on June 15, 2022 (Item #22), as amended on May 17. 2023
(Item #25). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,922,403

2. Modify Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, SFY 2024 Budget Sheet,' In Its. entirety with Exhibit C-4,
Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2. SFY 2025 Budget Sheet, In Its entirety with Exhibit C-6.
.  Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit C-8, Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated, by
reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit C-9, Amendment #3, Budget Sheet, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

NAM) New Hampshire A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP.2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03 Page1of3 • ' ' . Date

SS

V. 7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/29/2023

Date

~~Oee4jSlon«d by:

Title: Director

11/28/2023

Date

NAMI New Hampshire
~Do«uSEgn«d by:

SWvlS

Executive Director

NAMI New Hampshire

RFP-2022-DBH.01-FAMIL-01-A03
V. 7.12.23

A-s-i.a

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL '

Doeuaigncdbir:- *

11/29/2023

Date "o

T'dQ- Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

.  • . . Title:

NAM! New Hampshire A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-AD3 • * Page3of3
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-4 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

.  Contractor Name: NAMLNev/. Hampshire'^
Budget Request for. EamilylMutuai SupportSiervices

Budget Period 7/1/2023-^^6/30/2024-r4ii'i.''-«--Ti:.5C;
Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)26.6%.:,

•

gRrogi^iGortj^nded by DHHS h

1. Salary & Wages vV,: *'V:rCs';;;-;$4.i9:234i
2: Fringe Benefits -r ' - J89.419.

3. . Consultants :  ■■ ■■ $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. ♦. -*». V --$0'
5.(a) Supplies - Educational •  •• $18,580
5.(b) Supplies - Lab .  .-'u :$0:
5.(c) Supplies - Phaimacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel • *■ ^ . • S1,640r
7. Software .y ■ ^ $0;!
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications ■: •56;868-:
8. (b) Other - Education and Training ^  $2:340-
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) •  ISO.
Postage •  h ' ir' $2\50Q

Other (please specify) . 'tV ' - $0,-
Other (please specify)
Other (please specify)

9. Subreclpient Contracts •. . .• ■ ■ -SO
Total Direct Costs • . ■•.r $540,68T-

•
•

Total Indirect Costs
•

TOTAL ;  >. J»5r'-: $652,097-^

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03

Contractor Initial:
ss
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Exhibit C<6 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NAMIiNe^iHampsfiife'-^-^SlS^^
Budget Request for .^T^i'yiMulualiSuppo.iitjSefiylc^^^^

Budget Period ■7/.l:/20243;-:6/30/2026y?^Sl'.^^
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

1. Salary & Wages
2. Fringe Ber>efits
3. Consultants

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix lV to 2 CFR 200.
5.(a) Supplies > Educational 3>7805
5.(b) Supplies - Lab
5.(c)- Supplies-Pharmacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical
5.(e) Supplies Office
6. Travel
7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (postage)
Other (please specify}
Other (please specify)
Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts
Total Direct Costs

^  *

Total Indirect Costs .

.

TOTAL

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03

Contractor Initial:
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Exhibit C-8 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
-

Contractor Name: Ni^l|New:Hampshir8^^i^;?g1if^iV'i^^^

Budaet Request for:
Suldde;t3fevention,CoaKlion-Fiscals-^

Budget Period 7/1/2023;i'e/30/2024*;i^^^(3fr^|)i
Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

1. Salary & Wages
2. Fringe Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies • Educational

5.(b) Supplies-Lab
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

8. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Outside Services

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts ' rrr-.et-^^ \V-.-3^
Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs. "

TOTAL

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-01-A03

Contractor inittal:

OS

•  ss
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Exhibit C-9 Amendment #3, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ni^l'N^;Hampshiretfl=iij!cT^''5j^

Budget Request ton
Suicidef^vehtion^Coalition-Fiscafr;;
^gent tnu-l T

Budget Period 7/1./2024u-:6/30/2025^1^^|i*i?»^r^^<jn^
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

1. Salary & Wages
2. Fringe Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment — •
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies • Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel ,

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other • Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Outside Services

Other (please specify) . :V^-t
Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts !?vHi
Total Direct Costs

.

Total IrKlirect Costs
•

TOTAL

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAM1L-01-A03

Contractor Initial:

Date:
.11/28/2023
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LprI A. W«w
Iriterin Comnbtloncr

KeijiS.Fot
Director ,

STATEjOP WW HAMPSHIRE

OF AND HUMAN SERVIC)^

iiiviSiONFOR BEffA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CX)NCORD, NH 03301
<03-271-9544 1.800^51-3345 Eft 9544

Fax: 603-271^332 TDD Aecw: 1-800-735-2964 wm.dhh».ob.8ov

-April 27. 2023

His Excolloncy. Govomor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION .

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NAMI New Hampshire (VC #166630), Concord. NH. for family
mutual support and auldde prevention services, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by SI .534.664 from $1,337,739 to $2,872,403 and extending the
completion datefrom June 30,2023to June 30, 2025, effective July 1,2023. upon Govemor.and
Council appfoval-100% General Funds,

The original contfact was approved by Governor and Council on June 30.2021, Item #18.
and amended with Governor and Council approval on June 15.2022, item #22.

Funds are anticipate to be available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024
and 2025, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encum.branoes
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.

'  * . See attached fiscal details. ■

EXPLANATION j'

Tfe;purp03e of .this request is to, allow the Contractor to continue providing family mutual
support, public education and suldlde prevention services through support, education and
advocacy for adults and families affect^ by'Serious Mental Hiness (SMI), as well as children and
their families affected by Serious Emotional Disturbance (SED).

Additipna'lly. the Contractor will hire one (1) full time Engagement Coordinaiorwho will
solicit Input, cdrivene and coordinate a^^akeholder Advisory Council, facilitate the development
of partnerships, and provide techniwl assistance to community mental health centers to
Incorporate cons.uiirieriand femily Input Into organizational acllvllles. as required by the grant
awarded by the Substani^ Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration.. Approximately
22,000 individuals WDI be served frorn July 1,2023 through June 30,2025,

The Cphtractor provides services to adults 18 years of age and older with SMI, and
children under 18 years of age with SEP. and their family members, as well as mental health
service providers and the genera) public.

The Contractor will continue to provide peer-run support groups, education classes,
trainings, and advocacy opportunities for individuals and -families affected by mental Illness
throughout the state. They will' also continue to provide an array of training sessions on best
practices for suicide prevention and post IntSn/entlon for individuals, family members, ̂rvic©
providers, and the genera! public. In addition, crisis intervention, suicide intervention, and peer
leadership training sessions will be provided. " * », -
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His Excellency, Ooveroof Chrtstopher T. Sununu
and the HonoreUe Council

Poge2of2

The Contractor will continue providing information to the public through web-based media,
and distribute electronic and printed materials, upon approval by the Department, on topics that

'  Include family support and education programs and resources for survivors of a suicide toss..

The Contractor participates on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
meniber organization, and will support implementation of the goals of the suidde prevention
councirs strategic plan.

:  • The Department will monitor services to ensure the Contractor provides:

• A minimum ofeight (8) training sessions each month;

• One-on-one family support programming for a minimum of 125 Individuals
annually;

/  ' • Webrbased support groups to serve a minimum of 120 families/caregivers
annually;

'  ' ' • Family, friends, peer, and caregiver education classes for-a minimum of 176
participants annually;

• Responsestoaminimumof 1,000 phone, e-mail, social media messaging, and/or
in-person Inquiries annually; and

• Community presentations to a minimum of 400 family members and the general
public annually on ayanety of topics, related to promoting awareness of treatment
and recovery, suicide prevention and early interventions, and advocacy.

» ' In-Reachsenrices to residents at the Glencliff Home through ah In-ReachUaison
who, In collaboratioh with the in-reach cage manager, assists residents with
exploring steps to transitioning back into the community.

• One (1) full time Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator
(Engagement Coordinator) to inform the development of the NH COBHC model.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, ̂ reement of the parties and
Governor and Coundl approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two

'' (2) years of the four {4} years available. —' , .

Should the Governor and Coundl not authorize this request, individuals with severe
merital illness, their farhilies, and parents and families of childrer> with serious emotional
disturbances may not have access to these services that assist them to navigate the mental health
system. In addition, families and profesBlonals may not have access to training, or to support

'. group leadership and advocacy networks that provide assistance to prevent suicide, which could
result in an increase in the rate of suiddes statewide.. - -

Area served: Statewide. * :

Respectfully submitted,

crO

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

Ttu Deparlmuit cfH<oUK ond Humon ServUa 'Miuion i$ toJoin eommuniUet-ond fomiUtt
In providing opporiunitia for eilittm to ochitue /iMiUi Old independtncc.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL41.A02
FISCAL DETAIL SHEET

05-95^2-92201041190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
FAMILY MUTUAL SUPPORT SERVICES
lOO^Oeneral Funda .

Vendor Name: NAMi NH Vendor# 166630-8001

Stale Fis^l
Year -

Class/Account Class THie Job Number. Current Amount
Increase

fOecredsel
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Con'tmcts for Prooram Senices 92204119 $522,637.00 £0.00 $522,637.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 62204119 $522,637.00 $0.00 $522,637.00

2024 102-500731 Conirads for Pieoram Services 92204119 so.oo $522,637.00 $522,637.00

2025 102-S00731 Conlracls for Prooram Services 02204119 so.oo £522.637.00 S522.637.00

Sub Tote/ Sf.O45.274.O0 $1,045,274.00 S2.000.540.00

05'9S-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS

DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

100% General Funds

Vendor Name: NAMINH Vendor# 166630-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Ttiie Job Numb^ Qurrent Amount

Increase

-  '/Decreasel
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees 922D4117 S100.000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contrads for Program Services 92204117 .  S192.465.00 $0.00 .  $192,465.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $0.00 $192,465.00 $192,465.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 SO.OO S192.46S.00 $192,465.00

. Sub Total £292.465.00 $384,930.00 $677,395.00

05-05492-922010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS

DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES.
SAMHSA GRANT

100% Fodoral Funds

Vendor Name: NAMINH Vendor #166630-8001

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tide Job Number • Current Amount

Increase

fDecreasel
Revised Amount

2024 102-500731 Cdnirads for Program Services TBD $0.00 $104,460.00 *  $104,460.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD so.oo -  ' $0.00 $0.00

Sub Tola! so.oo $104,460.00 $104,460.00

TOTAL $1,337,739.00 ~ $1,534,664.00 $2,672,403.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

F]nar>ci8l Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services ..

Amendment #2 ^

This Amendment to-the Family Mutual Support Services contract Is by and between the Stale of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Oepartmenr) and NAMI New
Hampshire ("the Contractor").

vyHEREAS. pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
oh June 30. 2021 (Item #18). as amended on June 15. 2022 (Item #22). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified; and

. WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A. Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and ' .

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions-contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as foliows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

■June 30.2025 ' '
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,872,403
• I * * •

.  3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W. Moore. Director

4. Add Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #2, Additional Scope of Services, Community and Stakeholder
Engagement Coordinator, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. ModllyExhibltC,PaymenlTerms. Section 2, to read: - '
2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred In the

fulfillment of this* Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line Item, , as
.  specified in Exhibit C-1. Amendment #1, SPY 2022 Budget through Exhibit 0-7, Amendment

#2, SPY 2025 Glencliff Home in-Reach Budget. *
A

'■ 6. Modify Exhibit 0, Payment Terms, Section 7, to read:
7. The Cpntractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope'of Services, Exhibit B-1,

Amendment #1, Glencliff Home In-Reach Services, and Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #2.
Addillonal Scope of Services, Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator, In

. compliance wllh funding requirements.
7. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 8, to read; .

6. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld. In whole or In part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit B, Scope of Services,

j  ■ -Exhibit 8-1, Amendment #1. Glencliff Home In-Reach Services, and Exhibit B-2 - Amendment
#2, Additional Scope of Services. Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator.

8. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2; SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-5. Amendment #2, SFY 2024 Budget. Glencliff-Home In-Reach Budget, which Is'

NAMI New Hampstiire A-S-1.3 . ' Contractor Initials' v •
RFP-2022:OBH-01-FAMIL-01-A02 Page1ol4
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attached hereto and mcorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, SPY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein:

9  , ' t ,

11. Add Exhibit 07, Amendment #2. SPY 2025, Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget.

s .

NAMI Now Hampshire

RFP-2022-OBH-01-FAMIL-01-A02

A.S'1:3

Page 2 of 4

TTFtj-
Contractor Initials ^ ■

p-^^4/27/2023
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Arhendmeht shall be effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have-set their hands as of the date written below.

Stale of New Hampshire ^ .
Department of Health and Human Services .

4/27/2023

Date

'OxwSltywdty;

NameiKatja s. fox

Title: Director

4/27/2023

Date

NAMI New Hampshire

I  A. L.

^ -Boripwcrowy—rr
Namef^"^^'^ l. steams

executive Director

NAMI New Hampshire

RFP-2022-DBH-01-FAMIL-OI-AO^

A-S.1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding AmerKim'ent. having been reviewed by this ofTice, is approved as to forrh. substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/29/2023

"OtieuSlo**^

7«t734•74f734ft4<6414M..

Date Name; ouarino
Tille; Attorney ■

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

^  NAMI Nevy Hampshire

RFP-2022-08H01-FAMIL-01-A02

A.S.1.2

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
Temporary Staff Services \

EXHIBIT B-2 - Amendment #2

'  • ' ■ • • , . -

.  - Additional Scope of Services >

Community and Stakeholder Engagement Coordinator

1. Overview and Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide one (1) full time Community and Stakeholder
Engagement Coordinator (Engagement Coordinator) who will:

1.1.1. Coordinate, convene, and solicit input from a Stakehotder Advisory
Council while collaborating v^th the DHHS Coordinated

.. . r Comprehensive Behavioral Heal^ Care (CCBHC) Project Director;

1.1.2! Facilitate the development of partnerships; and '

*  ' ., 1.1.3. Provide technical assistance to Community Mental Health Centers
(CMHCs) to incorporatp consumer and family input into organizational
activities.

•  1.2. During the planning year, the Contractor must ensure the Engagement
Coordinator: ^ -

1.2.1. Engages Contractor staff and stakeholders to Inform the development
of the NH CCBHC model, which incudes, but is not limited to:

'  , ^ ' 1.2.1.1. Peers. ' ' " ;
1.2.1.2. ; Family members. '

1.2.1.3. Communities in stakeholder workgroups.

1.2.2, Obtains stakeholder input throughout the state from individuals with
'* - . SUD and/or mental illness, families and others affected by SUD and/or

mental illness, and stakeholder organization, through regional listening
sessions. Stakeholder organizations include, but are not limited to;

1.2.2.1. Ascentria Care Alliance.

.  . . 1.2.2.2. National Hispanic institute, (NHI) New England Chapter.

1.2.2.3. Mt. Kearsarge Indian Museum (MKIM). ■ i

1.2.2.4. f^ural Outright.

'  . 1.2.2.6. Hope for NH Recovery (HNHR).
1.2.2.6. NH Harm Reduction Coalition.

1.2.2.7. Famum Center In Manchester. . a.

1.2.2.8. R.O.A.D to Better Life in Nashua.

1.2.2.9. Headrest, Inc.

1.2.2.10. Families in Transition,(FIT).

.  . 1.2.2.11. Harbor Homes. . . •
UfLj'

RFP-2022-D9H-OV-FAMIL-01.A02 ContfactofInitiate ^
4/27/2023

.NAM3NowHompshlfO * ^ Papal 013 Data •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Temporary Staff Services

EXHIBIT B-2 - Amendrrtent #2

•  , r' 1-2.2.12. Waypoint. - ,

1.2.2.13. Youth M.O.V.E New Hampshire.

1.2.2.14. Mental Health Courts.

jj. 1.2.2.15. NH Mental Health Peer Support Agencies.

•7 1.2.3. Ensures input is received from populations Including, but noHimlted to:

1.2.3.1. Black. Latino, Indigenous and Native American persons,
Asian Americans and Paciric Islanders and other persons of

.  . • color;

1.2.3.2. Members of religious minorities. *

'. - 1.2.3.3. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, Iransgender, and queer (LGBTQ+)
persons.

'  • 1.2.3.4. Persons with disabilities.

?  -1.2.3.5. Persons wholive in rural areas.

.  - ' 1.2.3.6. Persons who have immigrated.

1.2.3.7. Persons of refugee status.

-  . 1.2.3.8. Persons of migrant status. ' ̂ .

1.2.3.9. Youth persons. ' . •

\  . 1.2.3.10. Young adult persons.

.  1.2.3.11. Persons serving In the military.

1.2.3.12. Persons who are of Veteran status. •

1.2.3.13. Persons otherwise adversely affected by persistent poverty
■■ * or inequality.

1.2.4. Engages stakeholders to develop a process of board governance or
.  other appropriate opportunities for meaningful input by consumers,

persons in recovery, and family members in CCBHC oversight.

1.2.5. Provides support In the development and preparation of the application
to participate in a.four (4) year CCBHC Demonstration Program.

^  1.2,6. Advocates to further expand opportunities to deliver coordinated,
comprehensive behavioral health care through the CCBHC model..

1.2.7. Attends the monthly Department CCBHC Leadership team meeting.

G
09

viLvJ

RFP-2022-OBH-01-FAMIL-01-A02 • Contraeto;

4/27/2023
NAMI Now HampsWfo ' Paflo 2 of 3 • DoId
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Temporary Staff Services

EXHIBIT B-2-Amendment #2

1.3. Reporting - -

1.3.1. The Contractor must submits a Stakeholder Engagement Progress
■ Report to the Department CC0HC Leadership team on a monthly
basis.

1.3.2. The contractor must submits quarterly reports to the Department
CC6HC Leadeship Team that includes, but is not limited to;

1,3.2.1, Stakeholder engagement activities.

*■ 1.3.22. Feedback received.

RFP-2022-OBH-01«FAM!L.01.A02

NAMI Naw Hampshire

Contrsctor InlUab

Pago 3 of 3 Dalo
4/27/2023
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Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, SPY 2024 Budget RPP-2022-MH-Q1-PAMU.-0X-A02

Now Kampahira OciMrtmem o( HmIU) and Hufflsn S*rvlc«i
Contractor Nome: NAMJNiw HampMm

•  Budaai ftoouost tor: FamfiyMtm/o/Support So/vicoc.

:  Suii(iOXP9tiodJvfy1,£023'Juf>o30.2024

Indlrocl Coal Rote (If sDtfleabto) 26^% ot saiirtm and wopos only

Unoliom i . * '
*  .*4

Program Cost • Funded by 0HH9

1. Saiarv&Waoos - •' • '409.234

.

2. F«1rM« SMortti '

3. ConcuRants
$0

4. Equlpnicnl
Mlraci cost rasa connol bo oppSed to oqi^tnt costs por 2 CFR 200.1 and
ADMndiilVlo2CFR200.

$0

&.(a] Suppltoo • Educafionsl
-  ' . ' S18.^

S.(0} 6up^ln-l.ob
*0

S.(c) SuppUa • Pharmacy . • '
■  SO

s.{d) Suppuos-Modlcat

4

'  ' . . w

5.(0) Su(v>Ge&Qn]co
•  $0

'

G.Ttsvsl '
'  . . $1,040

•

7. Software

y  . , •

O.tgtOiher-MvketlnorCommuntesikins . ' ■  K '
,a.

6. (ta> Olhcr • Education and Tralnlno

B. (c) Other • Other (soedry bdowt
•

ftwtapo
$2,500

Suicide P/ovcnt!on CouneU .•
$100,000

.li .

0i)ef(pitasasp6C^)
$0

. Other (pfooseepoct//)
$0

•

9. Subradoiant Contracts $2,340

.  - •

Total Direct Goals .  S520.t03

. . TelBltndlreet Costa •  $106,994

f'i

r  TOTAL • r '' $72T.0B7

Psfieloll

Contractor Initials
V27/?nn
'G
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment #2, SPY 2024 Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget

Now Kampshlrft Dopartmonl of Hootlh onfl Humon Sorwlcoo
Compltle on^Mgil loft» tor 9Mh buag&tptfloa.

CoWiodor Namo; NAMNew'HamfisN/o "
Budpot Requost for; FvTayMutuitSvppoftSarvlGes *

Bwrfgol Poftod Jofy f. iOiS' Jung SO, 2024

IncDrecl Cos) Roto {If appllcablo) 26.6% ol salarfqs and waflx only

.  UnoMom

'I

•> m

Program Cos),• Funded by OHHS

t. SatanrAWeoes

V  *■ S49.520

2. PrtnoB BeneSta .  • $12,818

3. Centuitants 50

4. tiqulpmant
mdlreci oosi role cannot be eppQed lo
equipment costsper2CFR 200.1 end
A(>oondUIVto2CFn200.

.. . r ' * SO

5^8) SuppUcs'-EduCoBona)
.  • . 50

5^) SuppCos-Lob '  50
S.(c) Suppttes-Phamscy

50
5.{d) Supplies • Medicel

,  . 50
5.(0} Applies Otfico • • • • 50

6. Tf«vd
'  ■ ' •• • ;. = $12,495

.

7. Soltware ••• • JO
*

a. (fi) ODier • Marketing/
Comrnunicstrons

$860

1

B. (bl Other • Education end Trelnlno 50

8. fct Other • Other fsocciN below)

Penoiut Care f to Fimdi ^  . 52.000

Fuel end Cve CIvtr Ajpttmrc Pod •! . .. . 51J)00
Sun Development .  $500

OCi6ffD!oas9sp6cHy) ' ' to

. . .

9. Subredi^t Contracts

-Totel Dlroci Costs r  ■ £79.293
1  •

Total Indirect Costs $13,172
-

TOTAL 592.465

POflO ) of 1

Contractor InltlaU
4/27/2023

Date

vji-vj-
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Exhibit G-6, Amendment #2, SPY 2025 Budget

»%v P«piftar>t •( H»iUi M I
•m 6u0gtt m mcf*

BUMM HMMIl Mn fa^U>ta#&fp3XfcM^
OMM NM A<t", M rezf

MM tel «•» a lUi) «i idKWf Mvmm «<r

Ua«lt<n A»AAinCtfl-r«aMltHW

1. »»J*.

•tin

-•

tl

i. tqifKmi*
mitt t*»« nM «»»■»» » »i»»i<w«owi pftcn wa.i »w««^ «
ivAtcnm

M

LM Biwiw • EttMMtl

•

\

V* • •
•.

i.m (unin'Ub
u

1

Ltd tiweiwMwwi
■  • •■ , • w

>.M Cxsim-M-M •
ta

».i«) a»pu«csic«
'm

mt

1. Trmt '

• -.

H

"

1. ut Cbw • ujimvo CDwivfc«ii»*»
,  M.«W

A rrtABiM-OiifliracvrNtM .

tZM

SMMAtvMIMaMXtf
•  t>0«^

Ohttfht—ttM ' w

OfmbtttumM
•&

•

1 AktrtclslMOMtMfri
M

•

TsiilOMCatt* lUiiii
..

Talil MHrl Cmn utati
4 ■  • ' .

TOTU tiniiT

</.

C«ntf»ctwlnltUli

Daii
4

G
OS

/27/2023



DocuSign Envelope 10; EF3235AD-F9DF-4679^1EB-B80B15674471 ^ .

OocuSHin Envelope fD: C)^FBl7&-12F£-4l3O-678d-C9lC0FllE4AE

Exhibit C-7, Amendment #2, SFY 2025 Glencliff Home In-Reach Budget

Nmv K«np9hiro Dtpsrifflont e> Keetth *0(1 Humtn Sflrvico*
*'■" c«infii9t9on9txtasitilofmior96ci>tuag»ip9flotl.

CcnU»elQttton)B:NAhbN$wHompst^
BiKtocrf ftMitMst for: SwpcvtSffA^ces

BudMiPoriod>/t/Vi^^->'v/*e3P,^P^ * '• . * "
tndlreot Coat Rate rflfiDDltCAblA) 28.6% oludartesftrKTwaoesoAty , •

*  - r * '
iinb Horn

• « * Sa*.^! * • **1 ' 4« *
•  ' • *■ i ' ■ • • •»'»■ -1

,  -j- PfooramCoei-Funded'byOHHS. i
}  . '

1. Stfarr&wooa

'< $49,520

2. Frinoa Benafilt ^
■  $i2.eia

? •

3. Consultants '
'

4. Equlpmonl
Intflroei cost rsle cannot bo cppliod to
eqiipment costs per 2CFR 200.1 and
ADoenClii(V|o2CFR200.

.  ' ■ • *0

$.(a} Supplies - Educa^at

5.(b) Supplies >Uib $0

6.(c) S(4>pUfS' Pbarmzcy .  $0

5.(d) Supplies-Madlcal so
5.(0} Suppiios Otflco w

6. Travel
-  $12,495

7. Softwaro '■ JD

8. (0) Other • Marttailno/
CMnmunicatiora

V  ' ' ~ $860

6. tbt Other • Edueatlan end Ttainino
SO

1

2
«-
Psrsonal Care Ftcx Funds • '  . • , ,i, S2.000

Fuel end Care Ctvcr Assistance Fool VfiOO

Sta6 Oevetopmeni . .. S500

Offwf (ptoaso spoc^
SO

. «  -1

9. SubrcdDlent Contnicts

t' SO

.

1 Total biroci Costs $79^
•

...

Toloi indlfoci Coeie $13,172
• ■

TOTAL 1  . , S92.465

Contractor initials :

Date,^
4/27/2023
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

tlVmON FOR BEHA VlOHAL HEALTH

119 PLEASANT street; CONCORD. 03301
603-371-9544 14^32-3345 E<t9S44

Fti:40>37f4333 TDD'Ae««u: l-0«>-73M^ w1m.Ohb3.nh.gw

•May 23. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T; Sununu
and the HonoraUe CouncD .

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division fbr.^havloral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NAM! New Hampshire (VC#1$6e30). Concord. NH. for family
mutual support and "suicide prevention services, by increasing the price limftotlon by $142,465
from $1,105,274 to $1,337,739 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30.2023.
effediye upon Governor end Counc'it approval. .100% General Funds.'

The orfginat contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30,2021, Itern #18.

Funds are available in the foKowing accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and .2023, with
the authority to edjusl budget lirie Items within the price Bmitalion end encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05.954192-922010-41180000-102.600731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVC8 DBPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL
health services, family mutual support services

State

Fiscal
Year

Class/
. Account

Class Title
Job

Numbor

. Currsnt
Budget

Increased

(Docreaeod)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

ProgSvc
92204119 $497,637 ■  M5,0P0 $522,637

2023 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

92204116 $497,637 $25,000
>

$522,637

• Subtotal $996,274 .  $50,000 $1,045,274

(I$.g54)92.922010'4l170000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALtH DiV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State
Fiscal

Year

•Class /

Account -
Class Title

Job
Number

Currsnt

Budget >

Inereaeed

(Decreased) ■
Amount

Revised
Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc-

92204117 $100,000 SO $100,000

1^

7A« ikparinmt o/N#aJih orni Uumw Strvlttt'Mltthn U tojoin ond/em\Ut»
■ in pf9vidins opportunilits (6f'<Uixtft$ to oMm htallh and indtptndtnea.
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Hl9 EKC«(lency. Governor Ctotetophor T. Sununv
^ the Honorebia Coimtf
Pe^2of3

2023 102-500731
Contracts for
ProgSvc • 02204117 $100,000 $92,405 $i02;4e5

. • • V'*"
:  • 5i/bfofa/ S200,000 $92,465 $292,405

-

• ^  Total $1,195,274 $142,466 $1,937,739

EXPLANATION ;

nie purpose of this request is to add SSO.OQiO that was appropriated rr> the State's operating
budget for State Fiseai Yeare 2022 and 2023 to eupport NKs Farr^iy Mutual Support Services.. This
Increase In funding ls critical to austaining family mutual eupport and suicide prevention aetvlces
through support, education and advocacy forpeopte affected t^y mental illness. Addition^ty, (his
request Includes funding and an expanded scope of services for the Glenciiff Home Ih-Reach
Liaison postlion. This position ensures ln«Reach services are available to residents at Glenciiff
Home by woflung collaboretiyety v^th etaff, comrnunlty providers and residante and their families
and guardians to transition into communlty-bssed settings^

Approximately 11,000 individuals and families will be served through June 30, 2023.

The Cor>tractor will continue providing family mutual suppon. public education, and suicide
prevention services through support, education and advocacy to adults age 18 years of age and
older with a Serious Mental lllneas, end their families; children tinder age 18 years of age with
Serious Emotional Disturbance, and their families; professional staff members providing servloes
tothese populations; and the general public. • ,

Services include peer*run support groups, education classes, trainings, and advocacy
opportunitias for individuals and families ̂ ected by mental illness throughout the state. The
Contractor will also continue providing, an array of iraintng sessions on best practices for auldde
prevention and post intervention for individuals, family members, service providers, and the
generq] public. Including edditionel training sessions on crisis intervention, suicidd Intervention
and peer leadership training. ' >1^

The Contractor participates on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
member organlzalion, and serves'as the fiscal agent for $100,000 of designated state genoral
•funds to eupport Impiemenlation pf the goals of the Suicide Prevention Council's strategic plan
and will continue providing Inforrnation to the public through web-based media, and distribute
electronic and printed rhalerlals.'with approval from the Department, on topics that Include family
support and education programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss. .

The Department win continue to monitor aervlces using the foliowlng performance
measures:

•  The total number of tralnlng.sessldnd provided during the previous month.

e  The number of indrviduais who participated in each training session. ..

•  Individual and coltective results of pre ar\d post tests for each type of baining.

f The number of contacts made with stakeholders and the general public in providing
mental health support and resources, and public speaking engagements.

The number of web-based/alectronic postings and resources disseminated each
month. 'j.

.':fe

. Ft
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.  • the number of technical aBsistsnce hours spent with education, support, and
leadership programs.

The number of residents eerved through the Olencliff In-Reach Liaison po'sltlon.

Should the Governor and Council liot authorize this request, there may not be ̂ equate
support services for families of individuals .with severe and persistent mental Illness, orfor parents
and families of children ̂ h Serious Emotional Disturb anoes who ere trying to navigate the mental

-  health system. Additionalty,- faniilie.s, peers; and mental health professionals may not have
opportunities to participate in training; support group leadership; and advocacy networks that.
assist tham to help prevent eulcide. or to help indviduals affected by suicide.

Area served: Statewide . - '

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shit^nene

Comnnissioner

I

g;

•
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State Of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Family. Mutual Support Services contract Is by and between, the Stale of New
Hampshlrei Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Department") and NAM! New
Hampshire {'the Coritractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30,2021, (Item #13), the Conlrador agreed to pertorm certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums speciried; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form Pr37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A. Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval.from the Governor and Executive Council; and • '

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these servicesi'and

NOW THEREFORE, ir> consideratlon of lha foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,337,739 .

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Stale Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director * ■ ^ •

3. Add Exhibit 8-1 ~ Amendment #1, Glenctiff Home In-Reach Services, which is attached hereto and
Incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Paymerit Terms. Section2. as follows:'

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of (his Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line. item, as
specified in Exhibil C-1, Amendment #1 SFY 2022 Budget through Exhibit C-2, Amendment #1
SFY 2023 Budget.

5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budgel^Form by replacing it in its entirely with Exhibit Crl Amendment #1 SFY
2022 Budget, which Is attached hereto end Incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibil C-2, Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibil C-2 Amendment #! SFY 2023
Budget, which Is attached her.eto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-3 Amendment #1 SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

NAMI Now Hampshire A*S-1.2 Conlreclof Initials'

Y'

RFPr2022-DBH-01.FAMlL-0l-A01 ' PagelofS 4 , Date
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AW terms and conditiorw of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain iri full force and effect.
This Amendment.shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

r r-

IN WiTNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below,

■  ■ ' Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

S/24/202?

Date

DM«n»w«»r:

Namtf'
Title: Director^

5/23/2022

Date

NAMi New Hampshire
.—(>»tasa»»f<6r

1 SusiUA. ■

Title: executive Director

NAMl New Hampshtfe

RFP.2022-DBHOVFAM1U.-O1-A0t

A.S-1.2

Pege 2 of 3
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-r"

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by Ihls.otfice, Is approved as lo form, substance and
execution. . • . '

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENeRAL

by:

S/24/2022 'y. , ■ \

Dale Narrie: n o

Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NAM) Now Hampshlfo A-S-1.2"

RFP-2022-D8H-01.FAMIL-01.A01 ' Page3ol3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mental Health Services

Exhibit B*1 - Amendment

Glencliff Home In-Reach Services

Olencliff Home In-Reach Liaison

1.1. The Contractor shall er^ure In-fteach services are'avallable to residents at the
Glendiff Home throuoh an In-Reach Liaison >fA\o. tn collaboration with the In-
Reach Case Manager:

1.1.1.' Assists reskJenls with exploring options for living In the community.
?  . ■ ■

1.1.2. Provides Informallon to residents relative to cbmmunlty-beseri opportunUies.

, l.i.S. Assists residents with acquiring skills to be active members of (he.
community.

1.1.4. Offers support to enable IrKlividuals to venture out and participate In
community-based re-engagemerit opportunities.

1.2. The. Contractor shall ensure the In-Reach Liaison coordinates access to Gfencliff
Home residents; scheduling and tmnsportation; and other services with-the
Department-designated Gienciiff Home staff.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure the'Id-Reach Liaison abides by Glendiff Home
policies end practices identified es appiicdbte to the (n-Reach Liai^r> by the
Department

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure the livReach Liaison works in partnership with
residents and staff at Gienciiff Home, the in-Reach Case Manager, as welt as ■
guardians, if applicable, and community-based providers ar\d agencies to assist
residents with their planning and transition process.

1.5. The Contractor shaQ ensure the In-Reach Liaison:
r

1.5.1.

1.5.2.

1.5.3.

Supports case coordinaGon and transition, piannlrtg efforts currently in
place at Gienciiff Home.

Engages in shared ieaming with Gienciiff Home residents regarding the
values of integrated community-based living.

Coiiaborates.wilh (he resident. Gienciiff (-tome staff, the in-Reach Case
Manager end community providers to achieve the goals identified In the
resldenl's transition plan.

2. PerformanceOutcomosandReporting

to2.1. The Contractor shall ensure (hat reslddntd are better prepared
return to community-based livirig, as evidenced by:
2.1.1. Engaging.-in shared learning actMiies with the In-Reach.

liaison around the values of Inlegraled community-based
living. >-
Meeting v^nlh the In-Reach Liaison and In-Reach Case
Manager and. v^en applicable, family members, guardian.
Gienciiff Home staff, ai^ other specified supborls to identify
concerns or reservations regarding community-based living
end' devoioping strategies to address or resolve such
concerns er^ reservallons.

2.1.2.

NAMI New Ksmpshirt

RFP.2022.08H-01 -FAMIL-01 -AO I

ExhitHi 8-1 - Ainendfflcnt #(-

Pngc I of I

Contmclorlniibls

Dale

.'d
■liiaLo I '

5/23/2022
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New Hampshire Deportment of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit C-3 Amendment SPY 2023

Contractor NAME: KAMI New Hampshire

Project Title: Family Mutual Support Services

Budget Period: SFY 2023

Item Description" ' July-lune

Peer Support Specialist:

Glenctiff Staff .
20 hours per week to provide peer support

services to residents; 530 hr.
* ̂  *■ $31,200

Glencllff Staff^Fdnge
FtCA. Medicare, SUtA, Workers Comp, 403B
Match,a2.9S% fringe

$4:040

Sub-total .  $35,240

TramportationfUsing Pre-Pa'ndemic rates)
Estimated $970 per month, 24000 miles peryear{@>
.4BS/mi to tramport consumers to access supports
and services.

.  $12/100

Uability Insurance
Additional liabilitY irisurance required for
transporting dtents^lUZS/empiovce

SU2S

Technology Purcttase new laptop and set-up, $900/ea. S900

Phone Cell phone S70/oer month/employee, contract SS40

HIPAA Zoom license Additional Zoom license for virtual meetioRS. S2sa

Supervision .IS FTE, 5122.000 . ' $16,300

Supervision-Fringe
FICA, Medicare. SUTA, Workers Comp. 403B
Match. Health, Der^tal & life 36.2K fringe

•  S6.625

Total Peer Support Specialist $75/180
Other: . "  •

.

Personal care Flex Funds >

Based on previous actual, funds to provide -
residents with personal care items, transportation,
etc. to assist during the re-integration prc^ess •
when other nnanciai resources are not available,
i.e. bus ticket, taxi voucher, co-pay assistance, etc.

\  ' Xi

$3,500

Fuel and Care Giver Assisance Pool
Purchase of Gas Gift Cards to family members who
need financial asslstartce to attend Family events

S2.0p0

Staff Development
NAMI NH Staff attendance at training conferences
or webinars. S300

$300

•• .  •• •

Sub-Total: Od^er $5,800
Indirect 23X approved IDC of salary - 511385

Total . S92.4B

er
a

m

f
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o
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S
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NAMI New Hampshire RFP-2022-DaH-01>FAMll-01-A01 Exhibit C'3 Arrrendment 01 SFY 2023 Budget 5/23/2022
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HOMaN SERVICES

DimtON FOR BEHA FIORAL HEALTH

\» PtEASATTT STRUT. CONCORD. NH OU01
60>>17I<9S44 lS0<Mn.33<5CitP544

P«i:603-ri-433) TODAc<«»: I-800.733-2964 ww«v.dblu^Ii.Bov

June 9,2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department o1 Health end Human Services..Division for Gehavioral Health,
to enter inio e contract with NAM) New Hampshire (VC#1SS630). Concord. NH, in the arnount of
•$1 ,'195,274 for family mutual support and suicide prevention services with the option to renew for
up to four <4) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council spprbval far the period from
July 1.2021. through June 30,2023.100% Generdi Funds. . ^

Funds are anticipated to be available In in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023, upon the avaitability and contirtued appropriaiion of funds in the future operating
Iwdget, with the authority to Q<$ust budget, line items within (he price limitation and encumbrances
behveen state Oscal years through the Budget Office, if needed end justified.

05-95-092-922010-41190d{lO>102-SOD731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEFT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OP. BUREAU dP MENTAL
HEALTH services; FAMILY MUTUAL SUPPORT SERVICES

State

Fiscal Year
Class/
Account

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204119 $497,637

2023 1.02-500731 ' Contracts for Prog Svc 92204119 $497,637

Subtotal $995,274

'05*99«092*92201041170000-102*500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF; HHS: - BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROORAfW SUPPORT .

State.
Fiscal Year

Class/
Account

Class Title Job Number TotalAmount

2022 102-500731 Contraclsfor Prog Svc 92204117 ;:$ioo,ooQ

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 •  $100,000
1

Subtotal $2OD,0pO

Tola! $1,195,274

»>
t

».
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide family mutual support, public educetion, and
suicide prevenlion services through support, education and advocacy lor adulte and their families
affected by serious mental Wness, es well as children and their families affected by serious
emotional disturbances. 't

The Contractor will provide services to adults age 16 years of age and ciderWith a Gerlous
fwtental fitness (SMI), and their families; children under age 18 years of age wHh Serious Emotional r>
Disturbance (SED). and their famiiies; professional staff members providing services to these ' . 'r
populations; and the general public, , . ji;

Approximately 11.000 individuals and families will be served from July 1.2021 to June 30. •
2023. .

The Contractor Will provide pear'run support groups, education classes, trainings, and
advocacy dpportunltiesfor Individuals and famQles affected by mental illness throughout the state.
They vnil also provide an array of training sessions on best practices for suicide prevention arid
post- interveritlon for individuais, famliy members, service providers, and the generaf publjc.
Additional training sessions on'crisis intervention, suicide intervention and peer leadership training
wHI be provided.

The Contractor will atso provide Information to the public throi^h wab-based media, end
distribute eiectronic and printed materials, with approval from the Department, on topics that
include farnlly supporl-and education programs and resources for survivors of a suicide loss.

The Contractor will participate on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention Council as a
member organization, and vrill serve es the fiscal agent for $100,000 of designated stale genera)
funds to support implementeiion of the goals of tli^ suicide prevention council's strategic plan.

The Departrhent wll) monHor contracted services using Ihe following performance
measures: ■ •

•  The total number of training sessions provided dufirig the previous month.
»  The number of Indlvrduals who participated in each training session. .
»  Individual end collective results of pre end post tests for each type' of training,
• The number of contacts made with stakeholders and the general puWic in providing

mental health support end resources, and public speaking engagements.
•  The number of web-basedfetectronic postings er^ resources disseminated each .
'  month.

^ • The number of technicat assistance hours spent with education, support, and
. leadership programs. ' . "

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process.using a
Request for .Proposals (RPPj that was posted on the Department's website from 3/30/2021
through 4/26/2021. The Department received one (1) response that was reviewed and scored by
a team of qualified Individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions Ip Standard Agreement Provisions. Section 1,
I.Revlsions to f^orm P-37, General Provisions, SMbseclion 1.1 of the attached contract, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, conlingenl upon
satisfactory delivery of services, avallabte funding, agreement of Ihe parties, and Governor and
Council approval, . . •

lij
f ■>
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HJjEwdleocy, Governor Ctw1jtop»>e7T.Sunuflu • _ ra,\
¥

F^eOofS
ond the KonoreMe Cound)

Area derved: Statewide

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblnettei

• Commissioner

r-.'

Should the Governor and Coundl not authorize this request, individuaie with eevere and
persistent mental iilniesa, thelr.famillea. and parents end families of children with serious emoUonal
disturbanoes may not have access to services that assist (hem to rtav^ate the mental heeKh '>1/,.
system. In addition, families and professionals may not have access to training, or to support
group leadership and advo'cacy networks that prowde assistance to prevenl suidde. This could '•r fj
result in an Increase In the rate of suiddes statewide. •r''^

I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

-Scoring Sheet

Family Mutual Support Services

RFPNamo

Bidder Ncme

1.
NAMl

J'

RFP'2022-DBH«01tfAMtL

RFP Number

Pns/Pail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

•  .? ■ 350 320

• •?
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t
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FORiM NUiMBEK t>-37(wnlon 12/11/2019)

SubjKi:;,Famlly Mutual Support Services<RFP-2022»DBH-0I-FAMIL)

Notice: Thtis asreemem and all of its adMhrnenis shall ̂ ome public upon submission to Covernof and
EkccuiK'c Council for approval. -Any in/armation (bat in- private. CQnlldcntiat or proprreury must
be clearly idcntined to the agency and agreed to In wiling prior id signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby rnvtually agree rollow;

GENERAL rROVISIONS " t

1.1 Stale Agency Name

New Hampshire Dcpaamcnt of Health and Human Scrtnces

1.2 State AgciK/Adtlrcss . . «

129 Pleasant Street - 1

ConcortJ.NH 03301.38.57.

♦ * >*'

1.3 Contractor Name

NAM! New Hampshire

1.4 Contractor Address'

85 .North State Sireci . ^

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor I'hone

Number

(603)225;5359
C'. *•'»

1.6 Account Number
.1.

OS-095-092.922010-

4 (IPOOOD-102-500731

05-095-092-9220 lOt
4(170000-102.500731

1.7 Completion Date

Junc.30.2023

1.8 Price Limitation

SI,195,274 ,

1.9 Contracting OHtccr Tor Suuc Agency

Nathan D. VVhiic, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

I.U CoDlractorSignature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
tccnnech Norton. UCSW

Executive Director

l.li'"'^ic''XgcncySi£tiaturc " 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
.Katja POX

Director , ,

1 .i a Ap^T^lby the N.H. Oepiuimcni of AdmintslrBtlon. Division of Personnel (ippJicuble)

By; . Director. On;

1.16 Approval by the Aiiorney Gcncml (Form, Substance and Execution) O/tippUcnblf)
/—OMiiWmafcp" .. .

•  • On: 6/9/2021

1.1? ApprowrbyiKc'dovCTnOfftndEsMuilvcCouncil (if(fpplicnhlej

. G^C Item number: C&C Meeting Date: •' .•;)

Page 1 or d
Contraclor Intiial

Date

yj
021

i
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, eciing through the agency ideniined in block' l.i
("Siaie'*), engages contractor IdcnMned in block t.)
CCpMracior") to perform, and ihc Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both. I'dentiftcd and more panicuUrly
described in the aitachcii EXHIBIT B u-hich is inrorporaied
herein by reference ('Services!').

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETIONOFSERVICES.

. 3.1 Notv-ilhsianding any provision Of this Agreemeni to the
contrary,' and subject to (he approvat of the Covrrnor and
Executive Council of iltc State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
(his Agrcernerx. and all obtigaiidns ofthc panics hercundcr. shall
become' efTccilve on the date -the Governor and Exccutiw
Council approve ibis Agreement as indicaicd in Uock 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, In which ease the Agreement
.shall become cITcclivc on thc.daic the Agreement is signed by
Ihc Stale Agency as shown iri block I.I 3 {"Effective Date"). .
3.2 If the Contractor commcnce.< the Services prior lo iltc,
EfTecli^'c Date, alt Scrviec.s performed by the Conirsctor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Comracior, and in ihceveni that thi.s Agreemeni docs not become
cffcciive, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limiiaiion, any obligation lo pay the
Contractor for any.costs incurred or Services pcrfonned.
Contractor must complete all Services by ihc Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDm()NAL NATURE OF ACREEiMENT.

Notvviihstapding any provisiun.of (his Agreement to the
conlrary, all obligolions of the State hereunder. including,
without limiiaiion, the continuance of payments hercundcr. arc

' contingent upon (he nxailability and continued appropriation of
funds ofrccied by any state.or fcdcr^ tcgisliiivc Or executist
action that' reduces, eliminates or olhcrwiK ittodifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope fur Services provided In EXHIBfT B. in whole or in
pan. In no ex'eni'shall ihc State be liable for any payments
hercundcr in excess of Such available appropriated funds. )n the
event of 0 rcduClioh or termlnaiion of appropriated funds, the.
State shall have the right to wiihltold payment until such fund.s
become available, if ever, and shall hi\x (he righi to reduce or
terminaie (he Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or icrmlnaiida.
The,State shall not be required to transfer funds from any.oihcr
account or source to the Account identined In block 1.6 In the
ctvnt funds it) thai Account arc reduced or unavailable!

5.CONTRACT PRICK/i'KlCE tl.MI'l'ATION/
payment.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms ofpayment
ore identified ei)d more particulariy described in EXHIUit C
wh'tch is incorporated herein by reference.
$.2 The payment by Ihc State of the contract price shall be iltc
only and Ihc comptric reimbursement to the Coniraeior fbr oil
expenses, of wha'tetxr nature incurred by (he Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the Only and Ihc compleie

compensation (o ihe-Cohiractor for the Servicc.e. The State shall
ha\x no liability to the Contractor other than the comriei pricr..
5.3 The State resersxs .the right to offset from ony arnounts
oihenv-Lsc payable to the Coniractor under (his Agreement those
liquidatfd amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 30:7
through RSA B0:7'C or any other provision oflavv.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreemeni to the'
contrary. oaO aoiwithstsnding unc.xpccicd circumstancex,'in no
event shall the total of all payments auihoriacd. or actually rnadc
hercundcr, exceed the Price Umitaiion .set forth in block I .Z.

6. COhtPLUKCE DVCONTRACrOR WITH LAWS

AND RECELATtONS/EQUAL EMPLbVMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conneetioi) with the perforinance of (he Services, the
Contractor shall comply with .all applicable Sidlute^ laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose, any obligation or duty upon the
Conlrttcior. including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if (his Agreement is
funded In any part by monies of the United States, the Controcior'
Shall comply sviih at! federal e.xecuiJve orders, hites. regulations
and statutes, and vvi ih any rules, regulations and ̂  idelincs as the
State or the United States issue to implement lhe.se regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with nil applicable Intellectual
property laws. . • „
6.2 During the term of (his Agreement, the Contractor shall not
di.scrtmimuc against employees or applieanis for crriployment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handieap, se.xuat'
oricmaiion.or national origin and wjl) lakcafnnnativc'oction.io'
prevent such discrlmlnaliOA
6.3. T2k Coniroctor agrees (o permit the State or United States
neccij loanyofihcComr.nctor's books, records and accounts for
the puqrosc of ascertaining compliance with' all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenflnis. terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Comractur shall at iu uwrv c.xpertsc provide oil personnel
fKCcssaryto perform the Services. The Cotttraclttf warrants that
all personnd er^gaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise ouihorizcd lo tlo so under oil opplicebtc l&w.s.
7.2 Unless orher^rise authorized in writins. during ihc term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Daie.in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit ony subcuniractur or other person, firm or
corporation with whom ii'is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Scnricc.s to hire, any pcnmn who is a State employee
or officiai, ui)o is materially insolvcd in the procurement,
adminisiraiion or performance of this Agreement. This
provision siiall surdvc tcrminaiion of this Agrcemcni.
7.3 The Conirecting'OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, Of his or her
successor, shnll be the Stale's representative. In the event of tmy
di.spuir conccrr>ii>g Ihc inlcrprctatinn of lhi.s Agrcemcni, the
Contrt<ting Officer's rtecision shall be fiiwl for the Stnie.

•'r!.-
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S.ltverfTOFDEKAULT/RCMEDlES. '
t.\ Any one or mofcofihe following acis or om:s?«ons of ihc
Coniracior shall consi^ulc an event oftlcfauli hercunder ("Event
orbcfauir'):

■ S.I.I' failure lo perform (Ite Services satisfaciorily or on
schcdutc;
fi.].2'failurc(o submit any report required hcrcunder; end'or
8. U failure to perform any other co\-cnani. term orcortd'dronof
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event ofDcfwIi. the State may

• take any one, or more, or oil. ofthe folloxving Kttow:.
8.2.1 gisT the ContracfOr o written notice cpccifying the Event of
Default nnd requiring it to be remedied within, in the obsence.of
a greater or Icuer sptxiricbiion of time, thirty (30) days from the
date ofthe notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) daj-s aOcr giving Ihc
Contract or notice of terminal ion;

. 8.2.2 |p>x the Contractor a written notice speeifying the Event of
Default and suspending ail p8ymem.s to be-made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the coruraci price
wh)^ uouid otherwise accrue to. Ihc Contmcior during the
perl^ from the date of such notice until such time as (he State
determines that the Contractor has eured the E\xm of Defnoli
shall rtctxr be paid to the Contractor.
8.2.3 give the Contfocior a written itoticc specifying the Event of
Default and set olT against ony other obligations the State may
owe to the Contreciof any damage's the State soffcrs! by reason of
any E*xnl of Default; and/or
8.2.4 gitx the Contmcior a WTiiten notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agmemcnl as breached, Icrminntc the
Agreement and pursue any oflts remedies at law or in equity or
both.

8J. No failure by the State to enforce ony proN*i.Mon.s hereof oficr
any Etxnt of Dcfttuli shall be deemed a u-aivcr of its ri^us with
regard to that Event of_Default, or any subscqiKni Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a 'waiver of ik right ofthe State to enforce each and

'all ofthe provisions hereof upon ony further or'diher Ewiu of
Default oo the pan of the Contractor.

O.TF.UMINATfdiN.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the .State may, at its xole
discrei'mn, terminate the Agreement for any reason, .in whde or
in pan. by thirty (30) days'uTitien rtotice io (he Contractor that
tlie State is e.xcfciiing its option to lerininaie ihc Agreement.
9.2 In Ihc ev^nt of an early lerminaiion of ih« Agrwmcni for
any report other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver id the
Coniractiitg Ofncer. not later than Itflecn (I S) days oflcr the (kite
of termination, .n itpon ("Termination Report") describlAS't*
detail all Services performed, and the contract price carnvd, to
and ttKluding the dale of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Rct>on shall
be identical to those of any Final Report dv.<erlbcd in the attached
EXHIOIT S.'tn addiiion. at the Sinic's discretion, <hc Coniracior
shall, within 15 da)'S of notice of early icrmlnailoti, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Tran.<riilon Flan for services uitdcr the
Agreement.
-  . . * .V

)0. DATA/ACCESS/CONFlDEATlALmv
preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agretmettt. the word "data" shall mean all ■
inforirution and things developed or obtained during the
pcrfofmaiKc of. or acquired or deyciopcd by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not Itnuicd to. all studies, reports,
ftlcii. formulae. sut\t^ maps, ehans. sound recordings, xndco
rccording.<, pictorial reproductions, drawings, anatysci. graphic
rcpreKcmaiions. computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
leiicrs. memoranda, papers, and documents, nil ̂ k-hether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and nny propcrl'y which has been received from
the St'tte or purchased with fund.s provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property Of the Since, and
shall be rclirrned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reoson.
10.3 Conridcniiality ofdata shall be go%'crncd byN.H. RSA
chapter 9I> A or other e.xt$tlng law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval ofthe State.

I r. CONTRACTOH'R RELATION TO T»E STATE. Inthc
performance of thi.s Agreement the Contractor Is in all rcspccw
an Independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Cbniractor nor any of its
ofliccrsi, employees, agcms or members shall have authority to
bind the State or rcccivx* nny benefits, workers' compcnsntion or
other emblumenis provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSlCNMENTypELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
.12.1 The 'Contractor ̂ 11 not a-ssign, or otherwise transfer any
' inicrc.ei in this Agreement without (he prior tvritten notice, which

shall be provided to the State at (cast fiRecn (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignnwiU. ''Change of Control" means (a) Htcrger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries ofrcltUcd transactions in
which n third parly, together with its alTiliates, becomes Ihc
direct or indirect owner of fifly percent (50%) or more of the
Noting shares or similnr equit)' interests, or combined voting
power of the Coturacior. or (b) the sale of all or substantially oil
of (he cfstiH of the Conir'actor.

12.2 None of the Services Shall be subeoniruc)^ by .the'
Coniracior wiihoul prior MTiiicn notice and consent of the State.
The State is cniitled locopic.^ of all subcoitiraetsand assignmeni
agreements and shall not be bound by any prpvL^ions contained
ill a subcontract or an a.ssignmcnt agreement to which it is not a
party. . .

13: INDEMNIFICATION. Unless othmvisc exempted by law.
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, iL<
olT»ccrs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal ipjtiry or propcny damages,
p.Mcnt or copyright infringement, or other claims nssencd against
the State, iisdfnccrs or cmf^oyecs, which arise out of (or whkh
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omission of the

3 of.

.•.t

.U

:v:.

'V

t'.j;

4r

Conirador Iniiiali

Dalc^ ion;-



OocuSi^n Envelope 10; EF32d5AD-FgDF-467941EB-B80B15674471

Doo^n Envelope ID; C14 PB175-12rE-413CF97 i COP 11E4A£

OoicuSIgn Envelope ID: SF&3SEFE-EPO4-43£t-808e-e0S5C0S12000

DocvSl^ Enveiopi ID; P806i}7D-B4iC*4$t4VASiMeSACESB93F0

Coflincior. or tubconlnctors, ioctuding but not limited to ihe
ncgKgence. reckleo or iniemioha! conduct. The State shall not
be liable (or eny costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Noi^K-iihsunding the foregoing, nothiiig'herdn
contDiQcd shall be deemed to constitute a w-alver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which Immunity is hereby fcscr>'ed to the
State. This covervim in paragraph U shall surWve the
tcrminaiibn of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at Its sole' expense, obtain and
contSnuoesly ra'atniain in foroe, attd shall reQuire onr
subeontracior or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
follouing insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance agaiaU all claims
of bodily irtjury, death or p/opcny damage, in umouiiis of not
le.ss than $1,0(10.000 per occumrnce and S3.000.(X)0 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause ofioss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not ICS.S than
SO^l of the whole replocemem value-of the property.
I4J The policies described insubparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and etMlorscmcnis appro\td for u.tc In the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcpanment of Insurnncc. and
issued by insuitrs lieensed in the State of New Mumpshirc.
(4.3 The Conlracipr shall furnish to the Contracting Oflitrr;
identified in block 1.9, or his or her .successor, a ccrii ricate{s) of
Insurance for all insurance required under thi.t Agrccmcm.
Comractorshall also furnish to the Contracting Omccr identified
in block 1.9, or his or her succc.ssor. cenifieatefs) of insurance
for ail reflevval{s} of insurance required under this Agrccmem iio
later than (cn (10) da}'S prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certincaic(s) of insurance and any
rencntdsthercofrhall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPEKSATTOiN.

15.1 By ligfiing this ogrccmenl, the Conirocior agrees, ccrtincs
and warrants (hat the Contractor is in compliance with or c.tempi
from, the requlrcmciusofN.H. RSA chapter 2gl'A C'lt'orktrs'
ConipenuJ^loiO-
15.3 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA ch^ler 2fil'A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any Subcontractor or as.<igiicc to secure and rnainiain.
pa)'ntcfil of Workers'. Coinpcnsation in connection with
ocii\ntics which the person proposes to undenakc pursuant to this
Agreement. ThcConiracior-shall furnish the Contracting OHiecr
identified in block 1.0, or his or her soceessor. proof of Workers'
Compensation in the. manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281'A and any applicable Tcncwsl(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by referee. The State
shall noi be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compcnsaiioft premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Cofllraeiot, or ony subcdmmet'or or emplo>'ec of Coniraeior.
which might arise under applicable State of New Hamp.dure
Woiken' Compensation laws in connection with the •
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the Other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
' Post Office addressed to (Ik panics at (he addresses ̂ vcn In

block.s 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by'an tnsirumcni in writing signed by (he
' parties hereto and only after approxnl of such amendment,

waiver or discharge by (he Go%'crnor and Execirth'C Council of
the State of Ne\v Hampshtre unlevs no such appro^'a]'is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Stale law, rule or pol'icy.

18. CHOICE OF LANV AND FORUM. Thi.c Agreement shall
be govvrned, inicrpreied'ond consinjcd in.ac'cordancc with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panlc.< and their respective successors
and assigns. The wxirdingused in this Agreement is the wording
choKcn by the panics to e.tpress iheU mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of.any pany.
Any actions arising out of (his Asrcemcni shall be brought and
maintained in New'Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
c.tclusivr jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING "TERMS. In. the event of a eonnici

between the tcrm.s of this P-37 form.-fa.s modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or aitschmcni.s and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-.17 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) sholl control.

20. THIRD parties. The panic.* hcrcio do not intend to
benefit ony third panics and this Agreemcm shall ooi be
construed to confer any such bertcftt.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agrccmeni are
for reference purposes only, and (he u-ords contaiiicd therein
shall in no wsy be held to explain, modify, amplify or old in the
Iracrpretation, construction or meaning of the provision; of Ihis
Agreement.

*22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

2.1. SKVF.UAHII.ITV. Inthcevcniartyofihepfo\"i.tioflsoflkij
Agreement arc held by a coun of compcicrti jurisdiction to be
contrary lo any state or federal law, the rcmoinlng provisions of
this Agreemcm win remain in full force and effect.

24. KNTIKE AGREEMENT. Jhis Agreement, which may be
c.\ccuicd in a number of crouiiterparts, each of wtieh shall be
deemed an original, conslityics entire agreement and
tindcrstanding between the parties, and supersede* all prior
agreements and undcr.*iandings with rcspcci to the Subject matter
hereof.

I.

-.f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Fahiily Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT A

'  Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provlstons
'v

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, Is.amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Dale, contingent upon ^tisfaclory delivery of
services, available fur^ding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegalion/Subcontracls, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows;

12.3. Subcontractors ere sut^ecl to the same coniractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsiWe to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with ell subcontractors, specifying the work lo be performed
end how corrective action shall be managed If the subcontractor's

•  * performance is inadequate. The ContractOf shall manage the
sobccnlraclor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
aclioh as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the Slate with
a list of all subconlractars provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Slate of any Inadequate subcontractor performance.

ftFP*2p22-DOH-Ol-FAMlL>Ot KAMI NewHafflpshir» ~ ConU«ctof ^
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EXHIBITS ■
,<i

1.5.1. Individualized family sujDport by an individual with lived experience who
can empathize with the challenges and needs of the families and
caregWers seeking support and link them with resources.

1.5.2. Age appropriate suppon and education to families across the life span
so they may learn and develop skills to:

1.5.2.1. Navigate the mental health system;

1.5.2.2. Manage the stressors that families affected by mental Illness
experience;'

1.5.2.3. Share concerns; • . ■

1.5.2.4. Develop coping skills; • •" * ••

.1.5.'2.5. Gain knowledge;

' * 1.5.2.6. team about community resources; and

1.5.2.7, Provide family members opportunities to: j.. ■=

1.5.2.7.1. Gain confidence;

1.5.2.7.2. Learn leadership skills, and

1.5.2.7.3. Move toward advocacy in order to assurne active
roles on state and local boards and commjUew that

RFP*20«'OBH-OVfAMll-O» NAMI NowHimptTw# Cont/aclof "
..jTTJrWn?!

8-1.0 , PftG«totl7 . Oolf

r'S'

Scope of Services '■
*•". • t.' ' .

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contraclor.shall provide services in this Agreement to adults age 18 years
of age and older with a Serious Mentai lilness (SMI), and their families; children t %
under age 18 years of age wth Serious Emotionai Disturbance (SED), and their
fdmilies; professional staff members providing services to these ppputatlons; **
ar^d the general public.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide the services described below In person, or virtually . .
^  using leleoonferenclng or distance communication technology due to f

.  . restrictions for COVID-19 safety protocols, if applicable. All services delivered ♦
virtually must be approved in advance by the Department. "

1.3. . The Contractor shall ensure services are available and provided statewide. " w

1.4. for the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean calendar
■ days.

Education. Trainlno. and SuDDort Groups i\'
•  ' ' • i<

1.5.. . The Contraclor.shall provide one-on-one family support programming, for a v..
' minimum of one hundred twenty fjve (125) Individuals annually (approximately

sixty-five (65) adults, thirty-five (35) older.adults and twenty-five (25) children), i
which includes, but is not limited to:

It

■■A
■ I.
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New Hamp.shire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services j •* •'

EXHIBIT B

—• ■ ■■ r —— .j,
focuson mental health related Issues and-partlcipate
In the promotion of the 10-Year Menial Health Plan. '''■

1.6. The Contractor shall provide two (2) web-based support groups. Caregivers of
Children Support Group and Family and Priertds of Adults Support Group, to
annually serve a minimum of one hundred and twenty (120) families/caregivers
of children and adolescents with severe emotional disorders, and r families and . .
careglvers of adults and older adults with mental Illness, moderated by bie
Contractors staff, to: . . .

1.6.1. Provide participants with the. opportunity to be part of a supportive
community when they are unable to physically attend other support /

,  - • groups; and . .

1.6.2. Make peer support, education and resources available to Individuals,
families, and providers.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide statewide education and training on family mutual
support programs, which Includes, but is not limited to: • , .

1.7.1. Family to Family and/or Family & Friends education classes l)y trained ■ '•
fadliialors.foraminfmumof sevenly-five(75)partlcipantsannuallyvvho

.  . have an adult family member with a mental illness, to Increase
knowledge and skills that will enable participants to:

,  . 1.7.1.1. Understand mental illness: , •
1.7.1.2. Manage personal siressors; '
1.7.1.3. Engage in and support the treatment and recovery process of * :•

family members: and _ j-.i
1.7.1.4. Advocate for timely and appropriate services- .

1.7.2. Training up to four (4) new teachers each year \vlih re-iraining provided :V"
via" quarterly in-service and support opportunities for up to twenty (20) j,
leadiers.

1.8. The Contractor shall provide Side by Side (SbS) curriculum; up to ten (10)
modules, for a minimum one hundred (100) participants who have an older aduM r-
family member, or for peers, and paraprofessionals who work with older adults
with mental illness, to assist participants with: • •

• f, = 1.8.1. Understanding mental illness In combination with other age-related • 'I-
issues;. * " " - •

,.^ 1.8.2. Accessingsupportsthaia$sisiwithbeingmoreeffective;and *
1.8.3. Empowering older adults with mental illness to take a more active role

In their care plan. . • '
1.9. The Contractor shall provide Ihree (3) Connection support groups for-up to

twelve (12) participants per group annually, for people with a mental illff^ ,tg:;
fVP-2O22-O0H-Ol-FAMlL-O> KAMI Now HampahlM ConlfBClOf Inhiolj ■ ■
B l.O P»ge2oJU •-* •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT B

t.9.1. Learn from and support each olher;

1.9.2. Share the chaUenges and successes of coping with mental illness;

1.9.3. Obtain comprehensive information regarding:

1.9.3.1. How to access mental heallh services and available resources;

1.9.3.2. Improvements to New Hampshire's Mental Health System; and

1.9.3.3. How to engage In system advocacy.

1.10. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of one (1) National Ajliance on Menlaj
Illness (NAMI) Peer-lo-Peer Educalipn Program for up to fifteen (15)
participants, which must include, but is not limited to:

1.10.1. Crealing a personalized relapse prevention plan;

1.10.2. Learn how to interact with heallh care providers;

1.10.3. Develop confidence for making decisions and reducing stress;

1.10.4. Stay up-to-date oh mental health research;

1.10.5. Understand the impact of symptoms on lheir life; and

'  . * '• 1.10.6. Access praclical resources on how to maintain Iheir journey toward
'  recovery.

1.11. the Contractor shall expand Us peer support services by offering
faclfitator/leadership training for individuals In recovery. The Contractor shall
train: . -

1.11.1. Two (2) new NAMI Peer-tO'Peer teachers: and .

1.11.2. Two (2) new NAMI Connection facilitators annually.

•  . 1.12. The Contractor shad provide youth and young adult resources and information
on social media, and a( minimum one (1) website, which must include but is not

•  limited to:

1,12.1. A youth leadership interaclive social networking website facilitate by
young adults with emotional disorders, created for and by youth ages
fourteen (14) through twenty-one (21) who are affected by emotional
disorders and/or mental illness and transitioning to adulthood, which
must include, but is nol limited to;

1.12.1.1. Providing a place where youth and young adults are:
3  ;

1.12.1.1.1. Able to support each Other by sharing ideas; and

i* 1.12.1.1.2. Able to (discuss concerns and .questions about
planning for the future.

1 -12.2. Infonrotion about opportunities available to youth and young adults to
gel involved to help create a better mental health system.

RFp.2W2OBHOVFAM)L-01 NAMI Now HampiMfO CorAractoMfjlwJ ^
a>1.0 - Pog»3oll7 Oato

021



DocuSlgn Envelope 10: eif^35AD.F9bF^679^1EB-B80B15674471

OocuStgn Envelope ID: Cl4FDl75-12FE-4l30<d7e3-C9K0f11E4AE •

OocuSIgn Envttopo 10:6FSa6EF£.ef84-43E1-d96a^55C0B12068

[>oouSi0nEnvciO(>elO:f9OOt37Oe4tC^StA^t348SACESe93Fd .

New Hampshire Department of HeaUh and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT B

1.13. The Contractor shall provide In Our Own Voice {lOOV} presenter traini^. to a
minimum of eight (8) individuals annually. lOOV shall assistlndividuals with lived
experience to gain confidente. and empower them to deliver their persona)
recovery story by: , v

1.13.1. Providing the tools to write compelling personal recovery stories:

1.13.2. Assisting participants with entianclng their public speaking skills;

1.13.3. Providing space for individuals to practice telling their personal stories
within a learning and safe environment;

1.13.4. Engaging new speakers from diverse backgrounds; and

1.13.5. Coordinating speaking engagements for trained speakers with a broad
array of audiences.

1.14. The Contractor shall provide Life Interrupted-{U) presenter training, to a
minimum of four (4) new presenters, annually and re-training for a minimum of
five (5) existing preserilers annually. LI family speaker training leaches public
speaking and presentation techniques to assist family members of any age who
have a loved one with a mental illness and/or serious emotional disorder to
develop presentations that Include:

1.14.1. Their family recovery story;

'" 1.14.2; Specific facts about mental health; and

1.14.3. Irnpodanl anti-stigma messaging.

1.1"5. The Contractor shall provide at least twelve (12) volunteer facilitated support
groups annually by providing:

1.15.1. Avenue for group meetings; " ;

1.15.2. A mechanism to track participation and evaluation;

1.15.3. Ongoing model-specific quarterly re-lraining/irr-service opportunities, for
■ a minimum of ten (10) facilitators annually in order to;

1.15.3.1. Refresh skills;

i;i5,3.2. Share learned experiences; and

and oiher relevant Information to share with other facllitalors
and . Individuals attending family support programrhlng
statewide.

1.16.4. Training for four (4) new support group leaders annually.

Program Support and information Dissemination

1.16. The Cohlractor shall provide it's Your Move Public Policy Leadership Training
for a minimum of twenty (20) participants annually, to assist individualpffc'

aFP'M22O8H'<l1'fAMH.-01 NAMJ COftUaCly Ifftial^ *•* •
v5757i02i

e-I.O ■p»9«4eri7 DalfeT -

1.

'I
'

'■'i

I

15.3.3. Communicate up-to-dale information on current policy topics ^
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EXHIBIT B

1.16.1. Develop effective communication, messaging skills, and advocacy skills:

1.16.2. Understand slate government, the 10-Year Mental Health Plari, the
Children's System of Care, and current legislation relative to mental

'  health and suicide prevention;

.  1.16.3. Increase their Knowledge of current mental health policies;

1.16.4. Become advocates for mental health issues, and to educate Key
stakeholders and Legtslalors about the importance of mental health
issues across;the llfespan; and

1.16.5. Participate on policy committees and other opportunities in policy
development.

1.17. The Contraclor shall promote and share information about opportuniiles to serve
on state and local boards and committees that focus on mental health related

issueswithtrainedteachers, facilitators, and presenters statewide. ■

1.18. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of eighleen hundred (1800) hours of
technical assistance annually to education, support and leadership, programs
statewide,- vsfhich must include but Is not limited to- . :•

1.18.1, Communicating with trained leaders, volunteers, teachers, presenters,
and advocates to support them in their leadership roles.

1.18.2^ Addressing concerns of trained leaders, teachers, and presenters In
order to solve problems.

1.18.3. Providing current mental health updates and resources at quarterly in-
.  service-meetings with teachers, facilifalors. leaders, and presenters.

1.18..4. Making opportunities available for famiiles to participate in statewide
. quality improvement initiatives.

T.19. The Contractor shall serve as- a repository for information and resources
dislributing electronic and printed materials regarding mental health, which must
include, but Is not limited to:

1.19.1. Accepting and responding to a minimum of one thousand (1.000) phone,
e-mail, social media messaging, and/or in-person inquiries annually.

1.19.2. Distributing a minimum of fifteen thousand " (15,000) educational
materials annually to Individuals, family members, providers, and
organizations. Materials will mclude:

1.19.2.1. Resources In both English and Spanish to Individuals, family
members, health care providers and other professionals
Including schools, public safety, health care organizations, and
more;

1.19.2.2. Evidence-based materials for Individuals and family support
and education programs; and -yr-w

RFP<202?-D8K4}l>PAMIl-0l NAMI Nftw Hampshlt* Conlraclor Iriii;
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•

1.19.2.3. Resources for suicide prevention and survivors of a suicide
loss. ■'

1.19.3. Malniainlrvg a public awareness and resource website with content that .
includes, but is not limited to:

1.19.3.1. Accurate and current resources for mental health information;
,  1.19.3.2. Current offerings and schedules for slaiewide famity support

programming; , •

1.19.3.3. Family support group information and schedules;
1.19.3.4. Testimony and letters that respond to current legislation, if

'  ■ applicable; -i ' • •
1.19.3.5. New Hampshire's 10-Year Menial Health Plan;

1.19.3.6. Social networlting opportunities for teens and young adults;
.  and ;

1.19.3.7. A complete listing of CommunUy Menial Health Centers end '
Peer Support Agencies, inclusive of contact information.

1.20. The. Contractor shall provide information through web-based media, Including
Video, Facebook, and Twitter, that must include, but Is not limited to:

'  . • 1.20.1. Publishing links to a minimum of fifteen (15> educational webinars and/or, " '
.videos relevant to;

1.20.1.1. Family education and support;

1.20.1.2. Suicide prevention; •
1.20.1.3. Supports to (hose bereaved by suicide; -
1.20.1.4. New Hampshire's 10-Year Mental Health Plan; and
1.20.1.5. Stigma reduction.

1.20.2. Other topics of intereslto families and individuals. -
Community Education. Stioma Reductron and Public Speaking

1.21. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of three (3) educationat presentations ><*
for famiftes and/or ca'regivers affected by mental Illness and persons wiih mental
illness on topics that include, but are not limUed to:

1.21.1. Advocacyandcurrentpollcyupdaies. . .. •'j
1.21.2. Mental health resources and treatments.

n

1.21.3. Coping skills and stigma.
■1.21.4. Working with the Office Of Consumer and Family Affairs (OGFA), within

the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau "

RfP-2<tt2-DBH4)l.FAWiL4>1 NAMlKftwHsnifiJhif* Conlioaof Wl&j
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New Hampshire Department oF Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services . . . iti

EXHIBIT B

{•,
It

of Mentar Health ■ Services, , to develop presenlallons focused on
persons with mental Illness.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide an annual educational conference for individuals,
transitional age youth, families, providers and interested members of Ihe public
that musl include: -

1.22.1. Mental health topics and issues for alt age groups; . .
1.22.2. Current and emerging evidence-based practices;
1.22.3. A description of the New Hampshire mental health system and 10-Year

Mental Health Plan; and

1.22.4. Key stakeholders end family members on the Conference Planning
Committee during the planning stages.

1.23. The Contractor shall provide educational services and acUviiies for the general
'public, including, but not limited to:
1.23.1. A minimum of twelve (12) anli-sligma messages and responses in

response to public statements that are prejudicial and discriminatory via
.  use of-newspaper, radio.-lelevision and social media sources. The

Contractor shall develop a plan that includes.bul is not limited to:
1.23.1.1. Community awareness events. ' ••
1.23.1.2. Observance of Mental Illness Awareness Week. J-
1.23.1.3. Collaborating with agencies, schools, community mental ^

•"heallh centers, community providers,, and New Hampshire - j
Hospital to provide activilles and evenls. J

1.23.1.4. Web-based tools In order to promote positive images
associated with menial Illness Including easily accessible •

.  information or links to Informallon about safe messaging.
1.23.2; A minimum of thirty (30) tn Our Own Voice [IQOV) Presentations of

personal stories, to help reduce the stigma of mental illness, for a
minimum of eight hundred (800) individuals from targeted audiences
that include, but are not limited to:

1.23.2.1. Mental health and substance use disorder peer support- ;>-
centers. • / - .

1.23.2.2. Mental health and healthcare providers. - •

1.23.2.3' Colleges. *
1.23.2.4. Law enforcement.

1.23.2.5. Department military/civilian committees. : \
1.23.2.6. Educators/schools.

ftfP-2072.O8K4)l-FAM1l.0l NAMl New KankAS)i(« - ConlisctOf IntUl
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.  fS V

•- - . _ I m
.  • • ;

1.23.2.7. other vendors and coUaboralcfs. as appropriate.
1.23.3. Amlniniumoflen(10)Lilelnlerfupled'(U)Presenlatlons.foraminlmum ' .

of one hundred and fifty (150) family members of any age who have'a ''
loved one with a mental Illness and/or serious emotional disorder gain

:  conHdence through instruction on public speaking and presentation ' .!
techniques in order to develop presentations that include:
1.23.3.1. Speaking abouHheir own experiences.
1.23.3.2. Address mental health stigma. !"
1.23.3.3. Educate communities about mental illness recovery.
1.23.3.4:. How menial Illness Impacts family members.

1.23 3.5. Resources available 10 family member! ;
1.23.4. A minimum of ten (10) presentations for a minimum of two hundred and

fifty (250) individuals of the general public annually on a variety of topics !
related to promoting awareness about treatment and recovery of serious

'  r. mental illness (SMI) and serious emotional disorders (S8D), including: '
1.23.4.1. Displaying and disseminating Information about mental illness

at conferences, health fairs and other events thai are designed c
. for specific, targeted audiences;

•  1.23.4:2. Ensuring staff members have completed Diversity and Cultural
.  ̂ Compel^ce training as approved by the Oepartmenl; and

1.23.4.3. Ensun'ng stigma reductlori messaging is a component of all
public presentations. •

Suicide Preventioh

1.24. The Contractor shall provide information regarding suicide, risk factors,
protective factors and warning signs to individuals, family members, service *"
providers, and the general public to Increase (heir ability to recognize at<risk
individuals and connect them to qualified-health professionals through the -
Contractor's NAMINH v^ebsite, social media, presentations, and the Information
and Resource line. ,

1.25. TheConlraclor5hallassembIeanddislributeaminimumofthreehundfed(300) ■ •, »*
resource packets for next of kin. with approval from the Oepartmenl, that must ;•

;  Include:

1.25.1. information and best practices for managing grief from a suicide loss; >
:  1.25.2. Wanning signs of suicidal feelings;

,  1.25.3. Methods for reducing risk of suicide, stigma, and isolation;
1.25.4. Tools to increase help-seeking behavior;and . . ^
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1.25.5. Resources end connections to Survivors of Suicide Loss support and ^
education programs. - ■ • ; '

1.26. The Contractor shall provide suicide prevention and intervention training
■  through: .* ♦. "

.  ' • t** <

.. ;>•' • 1.26.1. Annually, a minimum of four (4) education and awareness events that ' - T
' target Individuals with SMiySEO and their family members, lr> order to
Increase awareness of suicide as a public health ..issue through ^

' • collaboration with public and private organizations, coalitions, state "
;r ' bureaus, individuals with lived experience, family organizallons, and " >

. corhmunity mental health centers. Events must be designed to transfer
knowledge regarding: ' . . ■ • * '

.. 1.26.1.1. Suicide; . - ' ' '

1.26.1.2. Risk factors; * . "

1.26.1.3. Protective factors and warning signs;

• 1.26.1.4. Theabiiitytprecognizeal-risklndividuals; r

,1.26.1.5. Connecting at-rlsK individuals to qualified health professionals;
and -. - - * '

1.26.1.6. At least one (1) of these events must be delivered during ^
Nalional Suicide Prevention Monlh in September.

1.26.2,' A minimum of two (2) training opportunities for key service providers. • ;
annually, which must include but Is noliimlted to: "

1.26.2.1. Best Practice prolocois thai address how key service providers
..V should respond tea suicide Incident.' • ;

1.26.2.2. Integrating provider-spea'fic roles with other providers to . ' • ;}\
ensure gaps are closed resulting in a coordinated community
response.

1.26.2.3. Promoling early recognition of mental illness, substance abuse ;
'  disorder, and warning signs for suicide. '

1.26.2:4. Reducing stigmatizing atliludes. ^ f- - • .0

1.26.2.5. Promoting help seeking.

"1.26.2.6. Improving relationships between key service providers and the
service delivery system. '•

.1.26.3.- The Contraclor shall provide a mlnlmum of thirty <30) hours annually of ' .1
technical assistance and conference calls to support volunteer suicide
intervention and prevention trainers who train in (heir local regions to
support the volunteer pool of trainers and ensure they have updated

' training information. •
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1.27. The Contractor shall provide annually a minimum of one (1) Connect
Poslventiontraining. for up io thirty (30) individuals, which must Include, is not • '■
limited to: , ' ^

1.27.1.' Best practice protocols for key services providers in order to:
1.27.1.1. Reduce the risk of contagion. . , .

1.27.1.2. Provide information about warning signs for suicide In orderto 'i
increase help seeking behavior and sensitivity.

1:27.1,3. Increase the cultural responsiveness of service providers to ■,
those bereaved by suicide. _ ' ' \-

■ 1.27.1,4. Provide current science-based information/best practices on; ■
•  . 1.27.1.4,1. Grief: .

1:27.1.4.2. Suicide loss; . •

1.27.1.4.3. Resources; and !
1.27.1.4.4. Connection to survivors of suicide loss network. • '_*

1.28. The Qontractor shall provide a minimum of fifty (50) hours annually responding ■>*.
to suicide-incidents by providing consultation and technical assistance Ip.guide
key service providers apd community members In the use of best practice " • '. 'r-
protocols implemented after a suicide death in order to promote healing.

1.29. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of twenty (20) hours of support and ; •*
technical assistance to the Survivors of Suicide Loss Networks (SOSL) thai v-^
Includ^e, but are not limited to':

1.29.1, Support, help.fu! resources and conneclion to other families who have ;ri;
lost a family member to suicide. . .

1.29.2. Support and technical assistance to Survivor of Suicide Loss Support
Group ■facilitators, including, assistance with screening individuals who
are interested in attending groups and maintaining appropriate meeting
locations. .

•  1.29.3. .Support a minimum of six (6) Survivors ofSuicide Loss Support Groups
:  (SOLS) annually. ' " - i"

1.29.4. Provide a Survivor Newsletter that is distributed electronically statewide,
"to 8 minimum of five thousand (5,000) individuals. In order to educate ' ^
service providers, the public, and those affected by suicide regarding: . ;•
1.29.4.1. The impact of suicide on families and communities.

" 1.29.4.2. Available resources and supports. ■ *

1.29.4.3. Reducing the feelings orisolalion and shame. • /;

I
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1.29.5. Coordination of, a minimum of six (6) Suryivor Voices presentations
>  annually, for up to thirty (30) in-person participants, or up to seventy (70) ^

virtual participants, with the Suicide Loss Survivor SpeaKers' Bureau, ■ T.
that provides techriical assistance, statewide, to . trained speakers,
including but not llmiied to:

1.29.5.1. Locating presentation sites.

*1.29.5.2. Dislrlbulion of audience materials, including a program -
evaluation. . . . /I

1.29.6. Survivor Voices speakers re-training, for up to len (10) speakers V
annually, by providing updates on current research trends In suicide • ^
prevention and safe communication, while providing opportunities'to .
proceiss challenges and stigmas encountered as well as methods to
address those challenges, and stigmas.

1.29.7. A minimum of fifty (50) hours, annually, of Individual Survivor Support •
■  thai:

1.29.7.1. Pfovldesindividual support to survivorsof suicide lossln order
'  to connect them Nvilh support groups end other survivor

resources. •
JV

1.29.7.2. Assists survivors in organizing and coordinating mutual
support and acllviiies that promote awareness about mental ^ ;,v
illness, suicide prevenllon, reducing the risk and stigma, as " .

. well as promote healing and help seeking for participants.

1.29.7.3. Provides trained speakers who have survived an attempted -
suicide. •.

1.30. The .Contractor shall participate* on the New Hampshire Suicide Prevention.
Council as a member organization. The Contractor will serve as the fiscal agent
for SIOO.OOO of designated state general funds to support implemenlalion of the .
goals of (he suicide prevention council's strategic plan. The Contractor shall
work with the Suicide Prevention Council's leadership committee to:

1.30.1. Prioritize spending recommendations:

1.30*2. Vole on an annual budget and spending plan:

1.30.3. Bring a proposal forward to the Oepartmenl for approval; and •

1.30.4. Submit requesls to the Department lb carry .over funds from one fiscal
year to Ihe next, as necessary.

• Administrative Requirements

1.31. The Contractor shall accept the Pepartmenl's approved consultation, technical
assistance, training, and support as Identified and specified by the Department

, resulting from audit recommendations to fulfill all requiremenls^j, .this
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Agreement.

.i 1.32. The Contractor shall maintain a Board of Oireclors, which mosl have a mjnlmum \
of nine^9) voting members with experience in the menial health system, and; »•

1.32.1. The Board of Directors will consist Of Individuals whom self-identi^ as
having menial health lived experience; or " . ^

1.32.2. Identify as family members of Individuals wilh severe mental illness.
severe and persistent mental Illness, early serious mental illness, first ^
episode psychosis and/or severe emotional dislurljance. • ♦

.  1.33. The Contractor shall maintain records of Board of Director membership for
^  ' 7.: purposes of validation of annual board elections and to sjuppOft efficient and '■

regular communications with membership regarding Contractor activities. The
Contractor shall: - ' •

1.33.1. Ensure the records are provided to the Department upon request.

1.33.2. Mainlain minutes of Board meelings that include, but are not limited to; * j
1.33.2.1. Topics discussed.
1.33.2.2. Action steps and votes.

1.33.2.3. The monthly review of the agency financial status.
1.33.3. Have a documented orientation process and manual for Directors of the

"Board, which must be provided to the Department upon request. .
1.33.4. Provide annual training related lo the roles and responsibilities of (he

Board of Directors, to include fiduciary responsibllilies.

1.34. The Contractor shall maintain an accounting manual specific lo the organization ' ;i
^ which Includes, but Is not limited'to:
1.34.1. Cash management to include cash receipts, cash disbursements, and

petty cash.
■  1.34.2. Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable Procedures.

1.54.3. Payroll and fixed assets. ■ .
1.34.4. internal ControlPfocedures.

«  * • '

1.34.5. Expense reimbursement and Advance Policy,
1.35. f^rior to making an offer of employment or for volunteer work, the Contractor

shall, after obtaining signed and notarized authorization from the person or
persons for whom Information is being sought:

1.35.1. Obtain and verify at least two (2) references for the person; "
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.  • 1.35.2. Submlilhe person's name for review against the bureau Of elderly and
"  ' adult services (BEAS) state registry mainlalned pursuant to RSA 161-

F:49:

"  1.35.3. Complete a crirninat records check to ensure that the person has no
history of: • '

1.35.3.1. Felony cohvlclion; or

1.35.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviclion involving:

1.35.3.3. Physical or sexual assault:

1.35.3.4. Violence;

1.35.3.5. Exploitation; '

1.35.3.6. Child pornography;

1.35.3.7.-Threatening Of reckless conduct;

1.35.3.8. Theft;.

1.35.3.9. Driving undertheinfiuence of drugs or alcohol; or

. 1.35.3.lO.Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior that
could endanger the well-being of a consumer; arid

1.36. Unless approved by the Department, the Contractor shall not hire any Individudl.
or approve any individual to act as a volunteer, if:

1.36.1. The individual's name is on the BEAS stale registry;

-•i 1.36.2. The individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

1.36.3. The individual has a record of any misdemeanors specified In Paragraph
1.35.3. . .

021
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2. Exhibits Incprporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portdbility and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1995, and in accordance
with the attached Exhibit I, Busiriess Associate Agreernent. which has been
executed by the parties. . .

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreernent In
■accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security ' 7

Requirements." • . . <'lT
2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits O through K, Which are attached

hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3.. Reporting Requirements •...
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3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly financial and statistical reports within thirty
(30) days after the end of each quarter

3.1.1. Quarterly findncial reports must indudej " , '

3.1,1.1; A Cofporate Balance Sheet.

■  3.1.1.2. An Income Statement using the accrual method Of accounting. ■

_  3.1.1.3. A Budgel-to^Aclual Revenue and Expense report (Form A)
"  using.the cash method of accounting.

3.1.1.4. Total, revenue and expenditures, including funds from all
sources.

3.1.2. Quarterly statistical reports must include:

3.1.2.1. Data statistical reports based on crileria approved by the
Departmenl. r ,

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a monthly programming
calendar of scheduled events, trainings and programming for the upcoming,
month by the end of the.prior month. . .

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a monthly programming report
that Includes, but is not limited to: '

3.3.1. A description for each training session provided for the previous month.

3.3.2. The total number of training sessions provided during the previous H
.  month.

• e

»

'.w ' . ... ... . ■ ... ... f
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3.3.3. The number of individuals who participated in each training session.
3.3.4. Individual and collective results of pre and post tests for each .type of . §■

training.
3.3.5. The number of contacts made with stakeholders and the general public,

in providing me'ntal health support and resources and pubtic speaking
engagements. . ' '

3.3.6. The number of web-based/eleclronlc postings and resources • r iv.- ;
disseminated in the month. ' "

3.3.7. Thenumberoftechnicalassislancehoursspenlwitheducatibn.support, ,,
:i: and leadership programs. ' ^ ., *•

3.3.8. A list of. suicide prevention activities completed and numbers reached,
with the suicide prevention.councit activities clearly identified.

3.4. The Contractor shall conduct pre- and post-tests for trainings, and report results '
based on criteria approved by the Departmenl, to determine effectiveness of
services in paiiicipanl skills, knowledge and confidence. The Contractor shall:

i-



DocuSign Envelope ID: Ef3235AD-F9DF-467d-81EB-880B15674471

DocuSign Envelope ID; C1/FB175-12FE-4'l3<M7B3-CfllC0FllE4AE

OoojSflft Envelope iO: 5F93BEFE-EFW-43ei^9e8^8055COB120Ba
DocuSign Envelope lO: F9D0l37C«4iC-«5lA.A513-4S5«eSB93FO

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

i  EXHIBIT B

3.4.1. Conduct pre-and pdsl-tesis for training sessions longer than three (3)
hours'.

3.4.2. Conduct post surveys for training sessions/presentations less than threO
(3) hours

3.4.3. Conduct semi-annual follow-up survey with Individuals who cof>tact the
. Contractor's NAMi lnfoTTnation and Resource program. .

4. Perforrnance Measures

4.1.. The Department will monitor performance of the Contractor by reviewing
monthly reports as .described in Subsection 3.3. , . '

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Departnnent to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

" 4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.4. Where applicabte,. the Contractor shall collect and share data with the -
Department in.a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resuliing from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Contractor agrees trial, to Ihe extent future stale or federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, thfe Stale has the right to modify Service priorities and
experidilure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith. -

5.2- Federal Civil Righls'Laws Compliance: CuUufally and Ungulsticaliy Appropriate
Programs and Services' •.

■5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of Ihe Agreement
"  Effective Dale, a detailed description of the communication access and

language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English
proficiency: individuals who .are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals.
who are blind or have Jew vision; and individuals who havre speech
challenges. .. ^

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership ■ ■
5.3.1. At] documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other

niaterials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall Include the following statement. "The

■- ' preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of He^ and

J tsAf
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Human' Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such olher funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United Slates Department of Health and Human
Services." .

5.3.2. A(l materials produced or purchased under the Agmemeni shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
dislributioh or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for "any and all original
materials produced. Including, but not limited to:

6.3.3.1. Brochures. , r
.  5.3.3.2. Resource directories. . *

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
5.3.3.4. Posters, . .

" , 5.3.3.5. Reports.
6.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the

•  . Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.
6. Records .

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:
6.1.1. Books, records, documents end.other electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting all costs and olher expenses incurred by the
*• Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ali lncome received

V  or collected by the Contractor. ^
6.1.2. All records must be maintained In accordance with accounting

procedures and practices, which.sufficieniJy and properly reflect all such
,  .• costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and

lb include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of in-kind conlribulions.
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

■  6-.2. During the term of this Agreement and the'period for retention hereunder. the
v. Department, the United .States Department of Health and Human Services, and

any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of
the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon payment
of.the price timiiallon hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations of the
parses hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Ag^emeni
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are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement and/or survive
the termination of the Agreement) shal) terminate, provided however, that if,
upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Departmehl shall
retain the right, aiits discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disailowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

f * •
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IV.-'. r}

Payment Terms

1. This Agreemenl is funded by 100% General funds.

2. Paymenl she!) be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred In the fuinilment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with

:  the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C- '*
2, Budget. ' .

3. The Contractor shall subiri.U-an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department V
by the fifteenth (15lh) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice Is completed, dated and returned to the j
.Department in order to initiate paymenl.

A. In lieu of hard copies, all-invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and ^
. emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhh$.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager ^ "•
Department of Health and Human Services ' ,
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301 ' ' ' ^
■ 5.. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (SO) days

of receipt of each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and. . '
If sufficienl funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General • :
Provisions Form Number p-37 of this Agreement. ;

6. * The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the conlracl completion dale specified in Form P-37. General Provisions i
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7., The Coniractor must provide (he services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements^

;y 8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in -
whole or in part in.the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions r
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that *
funding under (his agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event . .
of non-compliance v/ith any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable

■  to the services provided, or If the .said services or products have not been
satisfactorily compleied in accordance with the terms and conditions of (his
agreement. , •

10; Notwithstanding paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the. price limitation • and adjusting ^

j' encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be mede by written agreement of Ixilh parties, without

RFP-2022-DBH*0I-FAM1L NAM! Nmv.Hwnpstdre Contrsclof InUiali
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Ni&w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Mutual Support Services

EXHIBIT C

obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed end
justified. .

11'. Audits ' . ..

11.1. The Contfaclor must email an annual audit to
fnelissa.s.mprin@dhhR.nh.Qov if any Of the following conditions exist:

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more In
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

.  200, during the mosi recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audil pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, Hl-b, pertaining to charitable
organizallons-recelving support of $1.000.000 or more.

11.1.3. Condition C ' The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annualltnancial audil. • :>■

11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audil
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the*
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance wth the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200i Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements," Cost
Prindples, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

11.4. In addition to, and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the
■ Contract, (I is understood and agreed, by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any stale or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such, ap exception.

RFP.2fl22-DBH-OI-FAMIL . -NAMI NowH^mpsWfO Coolraclof IrttioU.

C'1.3 PifloZolJ D»to,

7C'



DocuSign Bivelope ID: EF3235AD-P9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

OoeuSign Envelope ID: Sf93BErE-ErB4-43£1-a9»-B055C08V2D86

OoCuSign Envelope lO: F9D0l37C>-84'l&45lAVik51>«BSAC£Sd93PD

Ugw Higartf Oiyiiiimid giH««aft Svrile—

Be«e»i *»«*« nr FMer lewi Siifvwt iwitoi

Wt*» ■* ' *

.  GMnna/lMM'lIMtk .
oarwi - IM»MI raui -  . onn X . • lOOiii . •  T«ftM .  rmt% • . • towvt.,, « . .imi

», IwlebrrWwt »  A. D «  «0» t ft • 4  ftW^ ft ft 40i«l«
r. £«^«rwaMK. 1  nuf > %  usu * i ft ft ft •.

L Owifto 1 1 ft ft ft

<• >■»!■ II ■■. k » 1 ft ft »
Wli^l *  •• » ft ft ft ••

( i ft ft « »  •.

1
W 1 1  « « ft ft - f  ■■ 1

t  ivria 1 « ft 1 I  l4 lft» I  -V
t  .<• i «  . i I ft ft 1  » ft «

»fwwen * i 1 \  • 4  - a 1 ft ft .ft

1  • I 4 )  • . ft ft ft «• ft ft . •

or«> «  .> 1 1  • a ft , ft 4 ft • ft ♦
I. >  ' ru » • ru 1 ft ft ft . iu ft ft >u
r. Ott««!»«>«» ft ft ft ' • ft

1. CM>n>c<etm«i i 4 ft f ft

Tmtnnm «  airi t  4 in 4 ft ft I ft «m

t ft ft ft ft ri ft •
»« .ft • ft « ft I  -

«MM MlMJi I 1 \  «- ft - ft ft 4 i  «
i 4 ft ft ft ft .ft ••

teMfOV.Mt » 1 4 ft ft ft v» -ft» •

%  «»■»—» I .1. 4  * ft  • ft -ft ft « ft ..

M  »■■■»■« 1 t. 4  * ft ft • ft
II. ' ' «- $• ft ft ft 1 ft •

». tmiwiiMinni—1 4  > M> %  • ft . ft 1  ij«4 ft -a ft . 2 M
IV t t  - U ft ft • a i..

SMM Piirf^wiCaM* »  iM.teo i 1. Maem > • ft ft i  lasa ft ft • IQ»0e9

»  • V 1  . ft ft ft ft ft .ft. •.

» i 1 ft • • 1 ft ft ft ft

'  toru \  »n.i]i i  7^ • ft • .F. ft ft a 1  lllli f  ■ WMi
•nvMiM a c pvfct

KWHW w»«»»>lin

n<9> i«t

L/J
021



DooiStgn Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF-4679-81EB-B80B15674471

DeeuSign Envelope IO:.5F93eEF£-€FB4-43E1-89e6^5C08120B8

' Doo:Si9nEn'AtopelD:FgC}Oi370>e4tC-4S)AV«Sli-6flSACEse90FO

Raw Mam^filra papawaw ar Mas* aM Humaw $4<itea#

JXw: jeua i%a Km#»> I

tbp B^au MMie**

—B* »»<%* cn iw»

tvuaoai ararana atiMai

RR«<linraaai.i raiiiV'R|»u»lft>aRO%<

.« • _  IMWtMRfa.ara « •- .A • .'..... .rjaiigwat •  t

Mf •aM . -OBlRa •aa tmtmtt .a- .TMirf

1. laMtRaraWMM ft t ikiia i » a a
t. d«iBin ■mm ft a aiatf a • 1  a aaasi a a ■4.UV

ft a. 't a i a a 1  a i  • • I
.. fiwam: I i 4 a « • 4

i i - • » » a
»  IU»»e »»••#< ^•••Nempe » 1  • a a. » 4. «  • .a . •

4 . 1 4 1 A

ft f • »- - a • a *

faawwiR 1  »i.lM i a t41U 4 a X 1 <a.>a» a
- Laa i  •• t A » » t ft •
^4mmt i * a a , a a 4
tMcM ft • > 1 . » »  • ft •
OMft i - a a 4 4k • . a  . a . •

k ft tu » «  t»4 a t I 'ft.

ft * « i a t ■ a
a .&#«•>■ fiwm ft • » I I I- •

twiBian ' ft Of> t  . a 4ha i * .a ft ft.ftftft a a
>a«>aa ft ifto V V i •  na
Mwaaaa* V  • . i I a  a 4 «

ft •• «  . 1 a a i a i  • ■■ .■ •
Rwmee ft • 1 » ' a a I 1 a t-
aa^fiai'Wt ft J » I" 1 .1 l-

a. £a*iaai ft . » I 1 1 1 •

W. ft .• « . % a 1  • 1 t a •

<(. luafMJMaM rianna ft a • 1 } a 1  • • a t  a a
•L ewaareaouawarwa ft »-ft4> a. 1 i.%4* t 1 1 i  7^
IL Oia^iwaCoc-aU<.M>XM.e a f a

•
a a. 4 ■■ "■ . ■

T > 4- I- 1 •
•  '• 4  • . I  • I a. ft •• 1 (■ • T- *

I0I«4 ft ft liaS2ft I >^Uf I I, ft UJLUI % HIU a ' w.w

p
O

m
1.
«d

9

?
i
o

5
m

>
m

1. «aalaB».Cw>*ainaa>mB«tf«aa

10** M
Mgr (Ml

U/

6/8/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF-4679^1EB-Bd0B15674471

DoojSIgn Envelope lO: C14F617S.12FE-4i3M7B3^91C0Fl1E4AE

Docu^n Enveiopo 10: 5Ffl3a£>E-EFM-«36i-e96ft-e055C06l20Bfl
DocoSlBn Envelopo 10: FflDOt37IVB41 WMA^lM8i«:E5093FD
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.  'f

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ORUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Thc Vcndof kJeniificd In Section 1.3 of the General Piovfsionj.agrees locomply wllh Ihe provisions of
Sections 5151'5160 of Ihe Drug-Free WorkplaceAclof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle p; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq."). and further agrees to have the Contractor's represenlelive, as idonlifiod in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVH I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HI/MAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ♦ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONrRACTORS

This certifcalion Is required by the regulalions Implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of Ihe Drug-Free
WorKplace Acl of 1986 (Pub. L. l00-690. Tille V,Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C, 701 ei $eq.). The Januory 31,
1989 regulalions were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), arid reqidfo cortiflcaiion by granlees (and by inference, sub-granlees and sub-
coniractors). priorioasvard, that they will mBinlaln a drug-free workplace. Seciion 3017.630(c) of Ihe
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-coniractors) lhat is a Slate
may elect to make one wrtilication to the Oepartmeni in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by (he cerliftcotion. The certificate set oul below Is a
material representation ol fad upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
cerlilication or violalion of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or

• termination of grants, or governmeni wide suspension or debarment. ConUaclois using Ihis form should
send it to: .

' f *•

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street. . •
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies thai it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlav/ful manufacture, dlslribulion.

dispensing, possession or use of a conirolled substance Is prdiiblled in Ihe granlee's
workplace'and specifying the actions that wilt be taken agairisl employees Cor violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing ah ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1.- The dangers of drug abuse in the vwkplace:

.  1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, ond employee assistance programs; and
t.2.4. The penaRies that-may tie Imposed upon employees for drug ebuso violations

occurring In the workplace:
1.3. . Making tl a requiremeni that each employee to be engaged In the performance of Ihe grant be

given a copy of Ihe statement required by paragraph (a):
1.4. Notifying the employee "m ihe slalemcwil required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employmerii under' the grant, ihe employee win
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of Ihe slalemeni; and .
1.4.2. Notifyiheemployerinv/rlling-ofhisorherconviciionfofaviolationofQcriminaldrug-

-  ' * statute occuffing in the workplace no later lhan fivo calendar days efier.such
conviction;

1,6, Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiwng nolice under
subparagraph i,4.2 from an emptoyee or otherwise receiving actual notice ol such conviction.
Employers of cortvicled employees must provide nolice; Including portion title, to every grant

j- oKicer on whose grant aclrvity Ihe convicted employee was working, unless the Fe^aj agency

ExhWi D - CcniUcatlcn reparrSop Drup Free Vcrywr inWatj
WortplAce Requirements 6/8/2021
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New Hampshire Oeparlment of Healih and Human Services
Exhibit 0

-  has deslgnoied'e cerilral point for the receipt ol such notices. Notice shell Include th&
identilicetiofl number<s) ol each atfected grant:

1.6. Taldhg one of.the roliowving actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving.notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respecUo any employee who is so convicted
1^6.1. TaVing appropriate personnel action against such en employee, up (o and including

r' Icrmirtalion. consistent with the roquirements of the Reha^liiaiion Act of 1973. as
amended: or •

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to perticipalo satisraclorily In a drug abuse asslsutnce or ■
rehabilitation program approved lor such purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local heallh.
law ehforcemerl, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. .Making a good faRh e^ort to conlinva to maintain a drug-free workplace through
. f-: implemenlalion of paragraphs' t.l. 1.2,1.3.1.4.1.5. and 1.6..

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below ihe site(s) for the.performance of work done In
connectioT) with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (streei address, ciiy, county, slate, zip cods) (fist each location)

Check Q if (here are workplaces on file (hat are not tdenlified here.

6/8/2021

Date

Vendor Name:

Nafmi°"^Snfekk Norton, licsw.
Title: Executive ofreccor

•4

cu«>«cni97i>

0 - CerttflcdiionreganTc^ Drup Free
Wortpl^ce Reqiilrciteni»
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Vendor Iniiiota
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTtRCATIQN REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Weniificd in Section 1.3 ol the General Provisions agrees, to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 1.01-121. Governrncnl wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1332, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, es idonliTied in Sections 1.11 . -•
and 1.12 ol the Goneral.Provisions execute (he following Ce/tincation:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US department OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS ?

programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Tempdfary Assistance to Needy Families under title IV-A . . •
'Child Support Enlorcemsnl Program under Title (V-0 . •
'Social Services Slock Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Ser^s Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV.

- The undersigned cerlirtcs. to the bed o> his o< her knowledge and belief, that: « .. .

1. No Federet.appropriated funds have been paid or wdi be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Intluencing or attempting to influence en officer or.employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an emptoyee of a Member of Cor>9ress in

~ corvtection M^th (he av/ardlng oi any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modirtcaiion of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cocperalive agreement (and by specific mention
6ub-granlee or sub-conlractcr).

2. II any funds other than Federal approprrated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person fpr -
infhienctng or allempling-to influence an officer or employee ol any agency, a Member of Cor>gress,
an officer or employee pi Congress, or an employee of a (Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal coniracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LU., (Disclosure Form.lo
Report Lobbying, in accordance w'lih Its Instructions, ollached and identified as Standard Exhibit E>l.)

3. The undersign^ shall require thai (he language of this certification be Included in the award
docunienl for sub-awards at an tiers (Including subcdnlrscls, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, '
loans, and cooperative agreements) andlhaiall sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cenirteatlon is o material rcp'resefttoiion of fact upon which roSance was pieced when (his transection ,
was made or entered into. Submission of this certificatiort is a prerequisite for making or entering into this • .
transaclion imposed by Section 13S2, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to tile the required
certificatron shall besut^ed to a civil penalty ol-not l^s than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

.•C- " rf
Vendor Name: •

6/6/2021 , * - fcuOAiiL
iDale Norton, licsw

«•

r

r

Executive Director

* ̂  gjhJbll E - CeriSftcJ'fion Re^isfdmp Lrfebyiftp Wndw InWatA' — ■
6/8/2021
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CERTIFICATtON REGARDING DE8ARMENT. SUSPENSION

-  , AND OTHER RESPONSIBIHTY MATTERS ^ ' '

. The Ccntreciof identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comj^ with Iheprovisiofts of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 7$ regarding De^rment.
$usper\sion, and Other Responsibility Mailers, and further agrees to have the Contractor's

'  represenlaiive. as Idehllfed in Seclions 1.11 and l.i2 of the General Provisions execute Ihe following
Certlfcaiion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION " ^
-  1. 'By signing and submiiling ihis proposar^contrdcl). Ihe'prospective primary participant Is providing the

certiricalion set out below. .

2. The inabilily of a persor> lo provide the cartincation required below vnll noi necessarily result In denial
ol participation In this cove/ed transaction. If necessary, the prospeclivo participanl shall submli an

r  * explar>atlon of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or exptanalloh will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services'(OHHS)
delerminalion whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure ol the prospective primery
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from part'icipation In

.  this Iransaclion.
. I . . .

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of (act upon which reliance was placed
w^en DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later deteirhinM that Ihe prospective '
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certlficalloh, in addition to other remedies
available lo the Federal (^vernmeni. DHHS may letm'male this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency lo
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if al any time the prospective primary participant (earns
that its cerllticdtfon was erroneous v/hen submiited or has become errorteous by reason of changed
cifcumsiarices. . _ • •

5. The terms "covered lrar)5acilon,' "debarred,* 'suspended.'-'ineligible." 'loy/er tier covered
transaction." "participani." "person." 'primary covered transaction." "principal.* 'proposal.* and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in Ihis clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and

.  .' Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. 'See the
aljached definitions,

6. The'prospecliveprim8rypanicipanlagreesbysubmittin9(hisprDposal(contrac()that,should(hb .
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shall not kno^Mngly enter Into any lower Her covered
transaction with a person who.is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from particlpstiori In (his covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal thai It will include the
clause titled 'Ceriuricatlon Regarding Debarment. Suspension, incliglbltity and Votuntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, voihoul modification, In all lower tier covered
IransacUons end Inall solicltdllons for tower t'ler covered ifanSactions.

6. A participanl in a covered Iransacl'ion may rely upon a certiricalion of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not det>arred. suspended, tnefigibie, or Invotunlarily excluded
from the covered transaction', unless It knows that the certincation is erroneous. A participant may

>/• > decide the method and frequency by which It deterrrifnes (he eligibility of Its principals. Each
participanl may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocuremeni list (of excluded parties).

•  ̂

9. Nothir>g contained in (he foregoing shall be construed to require eslablishmcnl ol a system Of r^ofds
In order to render In good faith ihe certlfical'ton required by this clause. The knowledge and j^r •

vl ^
Eihibil F - CertifoUoo negifljing Dehximcni. SirtpcnjiOfl CeftUactQt<niiiah>~- ''-

■1 '• AndOlherR«spoAfMliiyMsUt<» 6/6/2071
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6/8/7021

Date Norton.' ltcsw
Title:

Executive Director

^1 ■ Wfi

(ttwAiiL
Norton.' LI

fy ■
I'lllftkV

V-V
\t .

' ■■■,*

Informalfon of a pertictpanl is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by q prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings. :• ...

10. Except for transacUons authorized under paragraph $ of these instructions, if e participant In e
covered transaction Knovdngly enters into s tower Uer covered transactionWith a person who b
suapencted. debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from pafUcIpalion In this transaction, in
addition to other remotes available to the F^cral government, OHHS'maytermlnstethislransaction
for cause or defauli ■

.PftlMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS * . .• 'l
" 11. The p/ospBcUve primary partici^ani certifies to the'best of Its knowledge and belief, mat It end ils .

pnnclpals:
11.1. ere notpresenilydebarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeni. declared ineligible, or .

voluntarily excluded from covered trsnsaclions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. havenotwfthinathree-yearperiodprecedingthisproposal(conlfact)beenconvlctedorqrhad

a ci^j judgment render^ against them for commission of fraud or a cdmlnat offense in .
' connecUon with obtaining.'attempting'lo otAaln/or performing a public (Federal, State or focal)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Slate antitrust t
slalules or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsiricallon or destruction of '
records, making false statements,or receiving slden property: .

11.3. are not presently Indicled for olheiwse Cfiminally or civilly charged by a governrheolal entity , ':
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph'(l)(b) ■' ■'
of this certillcaiion; end ' .

11:4. have nol within a three-year period preceding this appncalion/proposal had one or more public ■'*
tranaaciion; (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or.defaulL

12. Where the prosf^clive primary participahl is unable to certify to any of the sialemenis in this '
certificalibn. such prospective partidpani shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

.  t

LOWER TIER COVERED transactions ..
13. By signing and subnulling-lhis lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as . ' '*

defined in 48 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of Hs Knowledge and belief that it and ils principals: 7.
13.1. are riot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeni, declared Ineligible, or

voluniadly excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal departmeni or agency. [
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such I

prospective participant shall attach en explanation to this proposal (contract). • •.

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) lhatitwil] . 1
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Ocbarmcni. Suspension, Ineligibitily, and
Voluntary-Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transaclionsandlnelleolicltaUonsfortowertiefCOveredirQns&cfions. * .

Contractor Name;

ExhIbilF » Colif'Csfion RegvtfiAO Oebannenl, Suspension ConUtooi ioitlBb
AndOrherRosponsibmyMbuo'i 6/8/2021.
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c:.'

It

CERTIPICATION OF CQMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINiNQ TO '
FEDERAL NQNDISCRiMINATlQN. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND •

^  WHISTLE9L0WER PROTECTiONS ■ ^
'♦

The CofitraciOf identified in Section U ol the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represeniaiive as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisiohs. to execute the foftowing
certlflcalion: ^ . -v*

/  ■ " \
Conlractor will corhply, and will require arty subgraniees or subcontractors to comply, vnih any appilcable . ,
federal nondi&crimtnailon requirements, which Indude:

- the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Strecls Act of 1968 (42 tJ.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibils ,
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discfiminating. either In ernployment practices or in
the dePvery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, retigion, national origin, and sex. The Act .
requires certain recipients to [voduce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; . ' r
-the JuvenUe Justice Delinquency P/cveniion Aci'ol2002(42 Ll.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civi) righls obligations of the Sate Streets Act. Reclpienls of federal funding under this
slatule are prohibiled from discriminaiing. either In employment pracilces or in the delivery of services,or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, naiionai origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal ;
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; .

- the Civi) Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal ftnancial
assistance Irom discrirhlnating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any.program or acthrity};
- the RehabHUation Act of 1973 (29. U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assislance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard'lo employment and the deliveiy of
services Of benefits. In any program or acllviiy: . ' ' .

• the Americans vrilh Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.ac. Sections 12131 -34). which prohibits
dtscriminalion and ertsures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities iri. employment. State and local.
government services, public accommodations, comrhercisi factfuies, and trartsporlation; ^ .•
' the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimlnaliort on the.basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6.106-07). which prohibits discriminalion on the
basis of age In programsor activities receiving FederalTinarrcial assistance. It does not indude ^fi
employment fliscrimlnaliDrt;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justlce Regulations - OJ JDP Granl Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrlminalion; Equal Employment Opportunily; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for failh-based and community v
ofganizalions): Executivo Order No. 13559. which provide" fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria (or partnerships with rallh-bascd and neighborhood organisations; '

- 28 C.F.r; pt .38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Whlslleblower protections.41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacled January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for . ': "
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whlslleblower Protections, which protects employees against ^
reprisal for certain whistle bfowng activities In connection with federal grants and conyaclsi

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards (he grant False cerilflcation or violation of the certiricatlon shall be grounds for
suspension of paymenls. suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment. ' • •

-M ^ ;•

I, ' EzMbH 0
Con'mclof InUiib ______

C«<U<«d9««IC«>vteie« kin e«Ml (imWM el r*

M»iu . . 6/6/2021
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In the event d Federal or Siaie court or Federal or Stale admlnislrBiive agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wIB forward a copy of the finding to the Offrce lor CM! Rights, to
the appiicabie contracting agency or division wltliin ihe Department of Heallh and- Human Services, aruf
to Ihe OBpartmcnt of HealUi and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

•  *

The.Contfactor Identified In Section t .3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor s
rcpreseniaUve as Identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

"cefiificelion; ' " .

I. By dgning and sobmilling this proposal (conlraci) the Coni/actor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

J-

Contraclor Name:

6/6/2021

Date

Ojr:

Name":^e"hVt^ Norton, Ltcsw
Tille;, Executive 0<rector

• r-

v..

'■'e

OS

''' E*htoilO l ^
CoflV»ctoi InUbtt

em>H
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CepTIFtCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PuWteLow 103-22>. Part C - Envlronmcnlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-CWWren Act of 1994
(Act), requires thai smoWng not be permitted m any person of any indoor facBUy owned or (eased or
contracted for t>y an enlily and used roultnely or regularly for the provision of heaBh. day.^re, education,
or library services lo children under ihe age of 16, if the sennces are funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, (oan, or loan gu^ntee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided irt private residervces, facilUidS funded sclety by
Medtcare or Medicald funds, and portions ol faclDties used for inpalient drug or alcotiol treatmertt. Failure
lo comply with ihe provisions of tfw law may result in (he imposliion of a chr'il nioneiary penally of up lo
SlOOOper day end/or (he Imposliion of an administrative compliance order on (he responsible entliy.

The Contractor identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Coniractor's
representative as ideniifted in Section 1:i i arid 1.12 of-the General Provisions, lo execute Ihe fonowir^
ccrtificaUon:

1: By signing and submUtlng this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts lo comply
with all applicable provisions of Put^rc Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

.  Conlracior Name: "

bate . - Nam'^e^hV^^' Norton. ticsw
Executive Director

thi

Exhtb) H - Cehirtution Reptrding Co^l'ido' Inlibts - I

Erty]fOfvneAtalTot»oCoSniokB 6/8/202X
euomsinnt} P»9e«oii Pat*
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••V

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

'  The Conlraclor IdenliriDd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of Ihe Agreemenl ̂ rees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accoonlabllity Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defir>ed herein. 'Business
Associate" shall moan the Conlraclor and subcontractors and agents of the Conlraclor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreemer»t and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services. ..

I

<1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations., , ' . •

'•-.C; rcovered Entity" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations, ».

d. 'Deslonaled Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

t

e. "Data Aooreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. .

f. "{Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning ps the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Seclioni 64.501.

Q. "HITECH Act' means the Health Inlormation Technology lor Economic and Clinical Health
Ad. TilieXllf. Subtil/e 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvesimenl Act of
2009. . 0'

h, 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ol 1996, Public Law
104.191 and the Standards for Privacy arnf Security of Individually Identifiable Heallh •
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'IhdividuaT shaD have Ihe same meaning as the term "individoar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
5'-' and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representalive in accordance wiih 45

CFR Section 164.501(9). '

• j. '^fh/acv Rule' shall mean !he Standards (or Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heallh
tnformalion-at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Heallh and Human Services.

* -iL* 'Protected Heallh Informalion" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Sectiort 160.103, limited to the information created or recehrjed^;.
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. I .{^.

■>'/ ■ 3/201« . CortUBCJOf W8aS==:
Portability Act

BMbK}»A»oo'»e Agr«fimcn> O/d/2021
Pago I ol 6 . - -
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I. 'RftQitifftdbv Law* shall have the same meaning as the lerm "required by law" in 45 CFR
Seclton 1S4.103.

V "Sficretarv" shall mean the Secrelaiy of the Department of Health and Human Services or .
his/her designee. . • .

n. -Security Rule" shall mean the Securtty Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Pen 164. Subpart C., and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protecied Health fnformation' means protected health information thai Is not
• secured by a technology standard that renders protected healih Information unusable.-
unreadable. or Indecipherable lo unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organizalion that is accredlied by the American National Standards
Institute. ' .

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Pans I6p, 162 and 164. as amended from time lo time, and the
HIT6CH '
Act. :

^2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a.. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary lo provide the services ouliined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but nol limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit •
PHI In any nianner that wouid constitute a wlolallon of the Privacy and Security Rule.

: b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
^  I.. For lhe-proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

11. As r^ulred by law. pursuant lo.ihe terms set iforth In paragraph d. below; or
.{i III. For data aggregatrbn purposes for the health care operaiions of Covered

'■f-.. Entity. . ' * , ■ '

c. To the extent Business Associate is permilied under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)

'  reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as regulred by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (10 an agreement from such third party to notify Business,
Associate, in accordance with the KIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breech Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confideniialiiy of th^ PHI. lo the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach. .

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
•- provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response lo a

.  request for disclosure on the basis that It is requlred'by law. without firsi notifying
Covered.Enlity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to ot^aci to the disclos^^and
to seek appropriate reliel. if Covered Entity objects lo such disclosure, the Bustf^s

3/2014 CvhiM I Conuacior
Hcann imuranca PoiaMiiy Act
Business Auociale AQieecnenl 6/8/2021
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Exhibit I . , •

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all r<,
remedies.

ei If the Covered Enlily notincs the Business Associate thai Covered Entity has agreed to ■ : <:
be boufKt by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security -y
.  .4 niJi nn/l CA^ii*ih4 Diila fha Qiielnaee A«cn/«!al0 «'isafeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
sh^l be bound by such additional re'stricUons and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qblloatlons and Activities of Business Assoctate.

a. " The Business >iisSOCiate-ShaII notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware, of any use or disclosure of protected
Iwallh Information not provided for by the Agreemenl including breaches of unsecured
protected heallh-informaiion and/or any security (ncideni that may have an impact on the
protected health informalion of the Covered Eniity. .

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment wher) It becorhes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, Including the
'  types of identifiers and (he likelihood of re-identification; .

'.0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Informalion or to whom the
disdosure was made:

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
.  q - the extent to which the risk to the protected.healih Information has been

mitigated. ,,v"

The Business Assoctate shall-complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
. breach and immediately report the findings of ttie risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity. • •

c.- The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notincalion Rule. '

d. ' Busirtess Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
end records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance wilh HIPAA and the Privacy arxl

.. Security Rule. '

Business Associate shall require ail of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHl under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Seclion 3 (I). The Covered Gndty
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Conuactor s business ̂ gpieie
agreements wilh Coniracior's intended business associates, who will be recelvlh^Jti

yjQU *. EkMUi I Con)f«ctor iriUaU.
HeiUh tnsuf»nce Port«btEcy Ad

,  BoiihcijAijodMeAflfcciieftl 6/8/2021
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Exhibit I ' ;

"  pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
'' business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph nf 13 of the stdrvdard

contract provisions (P-37) of this AgreemenI for the purpose of use and disciosure of
projected health Information.

f. Wllhin Hve (S) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Asso'ciaie shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and'procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Coveted Entity, for puiposes of. enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. - *

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the

•  ' Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 4S CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendrpenl of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PH) available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its

r  obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

'. '' 1. Business Associate shall documeni such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section ■
164.528.

j; Within ten (10) business days of receiving a whiten request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Ei^tity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR

»•. Section 164.526.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such requesl.to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
individuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA arKl the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate'
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. ' Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, (or any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as speciHed by Covered Entity; all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection vhih the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. Ifreturn or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associale shall continue to extend (he protections of the
AgreemenI. to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thiar^-
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Guslnes

WCH4 * ExiAIII Cenucuw <
'  HMnMmu(ine£ptftAbU:yAci '
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Associate maintains such PHI. K Cov^ered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires thai Ihe
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Enlity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObHoations of Ccvcred Entity

a. Covered Enlity shall notify Business Aseodale of any changes or iimitation(8) in Us
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent thai such change or iimilation niay affect Business Associate's

. use Of disclosure of PHI. .

b. Covered Entity shaQ promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Enlity by individuals whose PHI may be used or

%  disclosed by Business Associate under (his Agreement, pursuant to.45 CFR Section
,  164.506 or 45 CPR Section 184.508. . , ' .

' c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of arty restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHi that Covered Enliiy has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.

.  ' (0 the extent that'such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of

■ . PHI. ■ 'V . . "

<6) Termination for Cause ' . *

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
'  Agreement (he Covered Enlity niay Inifnedlatety terminate the Agreement upon Covered

Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate (he Agreement or prowde an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a limeframe specified by Covered Enlity. if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation (0 Ihe Sccrelary.

■  (6) Mi§cfijJajieflHa \

.a. Definitions artd Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not olhdrw'rse defined herein,
shaUhdve (he same meaning as those term$ In (he Privacy and Security Rule, amended

V  from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended, • . ^

i''

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business'Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Enliiy to'comply with ihe changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and '
Security Rule, ahd applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership ftghls
with respect to (he PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d.- Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be -
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. \w

WOK ExHWi. CortfBctflitrJb'ari^-^-^ -
'  He«lvilniurinc«Pona«ISi/Aci

euslne((AuodateAgree««m 6/8/2021
Ptge&ore D*1b
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e. , SeofeQation. If any term or cor^dition of this Exhibit I or the applicdtion thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is heW invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
eonditlons which can be given effect without the invalid term or conditidn; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provi^ons In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destoictlon of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and Indemniricoiion provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
Standard terms and conditions {P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement. ,

m'

'•I

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto.have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartmenl of Healih or»d Human Services nami ncw nacpshirc

—r—rr:—^ ^—r".- '
Signalure of.Authorized Represenlatwe

Kacja FOX

Name of Authorized Representative
ofreccor

Title of Authorized Representative

6/8/2021

Date
'fj

Contractor

I tuAAo/lc
signature of Authorized Representative.

Kenneth Noribn, LICSV

Name.of Authorized Representative

executive of rector •:

Title of Aulhorized Representative

6/8/2021

Dale

.  :

•->.

A!

ytOM exhIMI

He etui bisutanee P«<tebtCiy M
DuelrteM Aswdeie Agrcefneru

Page 6 ol 6

Contractor IrAiaU

Date

ftp
'iaU^

6/8/2021
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oiii N^-entCTWtn-Norton, iiiiw

I  AWoIA.; (/6S^
Norton> 111

•Tllte: Executive Director

CxTAIl J - CcrtiTicetion Ropardln^ Wc FeOcrol FunOing Cenrftdo' Iniileb
Ae<oyM»bKl*AndTtflMpofOi>cyAcHFFATA}Cofnplianco ^ ^ 6/0/2021

CUfOHKSmOTO PapelolZ-

ff

U

ICERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABlLfTY ANO TRANSPARENCY
ftCT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE ^

The Federal Funding Accouniabllily and Transpafimcy Aci (FFATA)' requires prime owardees of Indlsrtdual'
Federal grants equal lo or greater lhan^S25.000 and awarded on or after Octoljcr 1.2010, to report on
datarelatedtoexecuUvocompensation and associated nr6t<tiersut>-grantsorS2S.000 Of more. If the ' -.5',
initial award Is below $26,000 bul subsequent grant modlTicatjons result in q total award equal to or over
$;25.000, Ihe award is subiecl to the FFATA reporting requlremanis, as of the daio of the award.
In ̂ ordarxce with 2 CFR Part 170<Reporting Subswardand Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Hoalih end Human SeiyiGes (DHHS) must report the loQowtng information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporling requlremenls:
1. Nameofentily;
2. Aniountofavrard ' i
3. Funding agency " • '
4. NAICS code lor contracts/CFOA program number for grants ^ ' n,,
5. Program source
,6. Award title "descriptive of the purpose of the funding action. •,
7. Location of the entity
8. Princfpfe-place of performance •
9. Unique IdenlifleiQf.the entity (DUNS ft) " ' 7
10. Total compensation arid names of the lop five executives if: . • '

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those ■
revenues are greater than $25M annually and .

.. 10.2. Compensation Inlormation Is not alresdy available through reporting lo the sec.
•  " ,?•

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required daia by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award emdndmenl Is made. ' .
The Contractor Identifjed In Section l.3of the General Provisions agrees locomply with the provisions of' . •
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Aci, Public Law 109-282 rind Public Law 110-252, p
end2CFRP3rt 170{ReportingSubawardand£xecu(fveCompen$e<ionlnformdlion),andfurtheragre8S " I;
to have the Coniracloi^s repfesenialive, as identified in Sections i .11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions
execute the following Certification: , •'
The below named Ccmtrector agrees lo provide needed information as outlined above to the NH .
Department of Health and Human Services and to comf^y with al) applicable provislor^ of the Federal <
Financi^ Accountability ai\d Transparency AcL

Contractor Name: . *

-OwvVgAMW.

VI .

A-

i
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As the Contractor identiriad In Section 1.3 ol the General Provtsbns, I certify that the responses to the
below Dsted queiPlons are true and accurate.

.  . 863088411 ■ '
1. The DUNS nu>rt)er far vour entity Is; ^

2. In your business or organlzailon's preceding compleled nscal year, did your buslness'or organlzaiion
receive 11) 60 percent or more of your annud gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants. and/Or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from.U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. andfor
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO, stop here > -

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your*
business or organization throu^ periodic reports Hied under section 13(a) or 15(d) ol ihe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (IS U.S.C.7Bm(a), 7^(dj) or secl'on6l04 of the internal Revenue Code of.
1988?

NO YES

If (he answer to 03 above is YES. slop here ^

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer (he following:

4. The r^ames and cpmpensatior) of the five.mosi highly compensated officers In your business or
organixaltonare as IoHows:-

Name:

Name:

Name:,

Name:,

Name*.

Amount:,

Amount:,

Amount:.

Amount",

Amount:

r?
,1,

■y

CUUrftOniOM)

ExnibH J > CertineAiion Reparding Ihe Fcdcrjl Furrdlng
ACCOvnlebiMy Ai\d Tftnsporency Ael (FFATA) ComplBftce

Pdge 2^2

CcrtlMCtor InlibU

■^o»

tN

0£ta.
6/6/2021
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pHHS Information Security Requirements
I  ' . - • -

A. DeHndions r

The followine terms may be reflected end have (he described meenino in this document:

1. 'Breech' means the loss of control; compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or eny similar (erm referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally rdentifiabte.
inrbrmatlon, svheiher physical or elaclronic. With regard to Protected Health
information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45i Code of Federal Regulations.

Z  'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incidenr, In section two (2) of MIST Publicaiion 800*61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confldenllal Information* or 'Confldentlal Data* means all conndentlal Information
disclosed by one party to the other such es all medical, health, rtnancial. public

- assistance benelits and personal information Includir^ without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case, Records, Protected Health. Iniormalion and
Persohally Identifiable Information,

Confidential Information also inctudes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, dtscjosure. protection, and disposition is governed by
stale or federal law or regulation! This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information fPHI), Personai information (PI). Personal Financial
Informalion (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), arvJ or other sensitive and conndential Information.

4. 'Er^d User' means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractcr's omptoyee,
business'assoclata, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5.. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabllily Act of 1996 and the
regulations promutgaled thereunder. ^

6. 'Inddent' means an act that.potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy.
A:.. ' y^rich Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a

system or its data, unwanted disojplion or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware.
firrhware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, Insiructidn, or
consent. Incidents IrxJude the toss of data through (heft or device misplacement, toss
or misplacemenl of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electrode

oi-
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mail, all of which may have the potenlial lo pui the data al risk of unauthorized "
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruclion.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is '
-not designated by the Slate of New Hampshire's Department of Information V
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, lo trartsmil) will be considered an open . .
network and no\ adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI, ,• ;
PHI or conndeotial DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or 'Pr) means inrormatlon which can be used lo distinguish a
or trace an Indlviduars ideniily, such as their name, sqclal security number, personal , ':
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:i9, blomelric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with pther personal or.ldenlifying information which Is linked
Of linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden >•
name. etc. . '

9. 'Privacy Rule"* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenlifiabfe Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Dep'artmeni of Health and Human Services. . . . . i.

.  f

10. 'Protected Health Infonrnailon' (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the \i.
definillon of "Protecled Health Information' in the HlPAA Privacy Rule al 45 C.F.R. § *" ^4
160.103. ■ _ * '•

11. 'Security Rule''shall mean Ihe Security Standards for the Proldclion of Electronic ;•
Protected Health Irtformatlon at 45 C.F.R. Part. 164, Subpart, C, and amendments . /
thereto. . ■

•f

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information thai Is .i'
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information '*
unusable, unreadable, -or indecipherable to unaqihorlzed Indtviduats and is it
developed or-endorsed t^ a standards developing organization that Is accredited by :)?
tho American National Standards Institute. :

v*.»

RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE contractor
\

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. , ' '
■' I • , ■ ' *. I

.1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Conndenlial Information '• :•
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Conlfaclor. '.
•'^eluding but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must r^oi . ' i*
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would conslilule a violation
of the Privacy and Secur'tly Rule. . . :

2. The Conlractor r^usl not disclose any Confidential Informalion In response to a ' i"

Up ■ \
VS.U«op4aiel0'0a/l8 .feWbllK CoWfact&rlnlllab^--~"

,  ' OHHS Infonndlioft * i
-r, SMurilyRcqWcmenls 6/6/2071 •
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request for disclosure on the basis that U is required by law. ir> response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to i
co/jsenl Of object to the disdosure. . . . •'

3. If OHHS notifies the Cohlracto) that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restriction's over and above those uses or disclosures Of security safeguards of PH!

-  pursuant tb the Privacy and Sccurily Rule, the Contractor must be bourwJ by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such addiiional • ^

r  reslflctlons end must abide by any additional security safeguards, . ' •:

4.. the Coniraclor agrees that OHHS Data or derivativG Ihere from disclosed to an End .. ^ r
User must only be used pursuarrt to the terms oflhis Contract. '• • ".l--

5. The Cdntracior agrees DHHS Data obtain^ under this Coniract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated Inlhis Contract , ' l

6. The Coniraclor agrees to grant access to the data to the authoriied represenlallves
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance' with the terms of this ^
Contract. ' ^

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

- I. Application Erfcryplion. If End User is tra.nsmming OHHS, data containing
Gonndenilal Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber securily and that , said
applicalion's encryption capabililies ensure secure transmission via the internel. . . ^

2. Computer Disks and Porlable Storage Devices. End User may not use compuler disks
• or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmllllhg DHHS .

data. • .

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if . .y.
email is enervbled and being sent to and being received by email addresses of

-. persons authorized to receive such Informalion. _ ,

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is eniploylng the Web, to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) musl be used and the web site must be
secure. =SSL encrypts data transmuted via a Web site. . sj:

5. File Hosting Services, also known ds File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Ooogle Cloud Storage, to iransmil • ^ . ..
Confidential Data. ' • ^ " ' " ' .

6. Ground Mail Service. Ehd User may only transmit Confidcntiat Data via CGrtined ground ^
mail wlihln the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual. -

7. " Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing porlable devices to transmit
Contldential Data said devices musl be encrypted and password-protected. ....

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidentia! Data via an open

111 1.
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wireless rtetwork. End User must employ a virtual private network <VPN) whert
•remotely Iransmiiiing via an open wireless network. , ^ 'i,

9. Remote User Communication, if End User Is employing remote convnunicatlorv to
,  access or transmit Conndenlial Data. a virtual private network (VPN) must be i'

Installed on the End User's moblie devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or ajxessed. : '

10. SSH File Transfer Proiobol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP lo transmit Confidenlial Data, End User will
simcture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriale disclosure of
Information. SfTTP folders and sub-folders used for IransmiUIng Confidential Data will . . 'i
be coded for 24-hour auto-delellon cycle (I.e. Confidentiat Data .will be deleted every 24 '
hours). . ,. . • .

11. Wireless Devices.- If End User Is Iransmltting Confidenlial Data via wireless devices, all
data must bc encrypied to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

HI. RETENTIONANO'DISPOSITI.ONOFIDENTIFIABLERECORDS ' * ■

The. Cbnlfactof wiB only retain Ihe data and any derivative of the data fpr the duration of this
Oonirdct. Afler such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required, by law or permitted , t
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Relsnllon r

1. The Contractor agrees 11 will not store, transfer or process dala collected In
connection with the sen>ices rendered under this Contract outside of the United f't
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabililies, and Includes backup •

. -. dala and Disaster Recovery locations. -/

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure .proper security mdniloring capabilities ere In
place to detect poleniial security events that can Irripacl State of NH systems
and/or Oepadment confidentiat Information for contractor prbvldsd systems.

3.^ The Contteclor agrees lo provide security .awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department conflderilial Information. .

4. The Contraciof agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Conridenlia) Data
*  . In a secure location and IdeniiHed In section IV. A.2 .

5. The Conlraclpr .agrees Cor>fid8nilal Data stored In a Cloud must t>e In a . ~
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and

•  regutations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anli'Viral. anil*
hacker, anti-spam, antj-spyware, and anii-malware utiiilies: The environmenl. es a

■P
V5.Lo4ii90dlo itfOSnS EjihibiiK ContractorinUtu

DHHS msorniatibn'
'  SeeurSyRc^wirvnonis • 6/0/2021

P»90 4 0I9 Oato •



DoicuSign Envelope ID: EF3235AD-F9DF^87a^1EB^B15674471

OocuStgn Envelope (0; C14FB17S.12FE-413(^7B3^91C0F11E4AE

boctfSIOft envelope U):'6F«e£Fe-eFB4-43E1-fl»6^5C08IZ0S8

: Decv$iBnEmt(op«IO:FeOOl370>B4lC4$iA^iy4BSACE5e93FD

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

-  Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

'  v^hole. must have &9gressive intrusion-detection and nrewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures lis complete cooperation with the Stale's
.  Chief Information Officer in the deteclion of any security vulnerability of Ihe hosting

Infrastructure.

B. OisposiUon

1. If the Contractor will malnieln any Confldentiar information on its systems (or Its
8Ub;ConirdCtor-systems), (he Contractor wiij maintain a documenied process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and Wm
obtain written certificaiion for any State oi New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Conlrador or any subcontraclors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When ho longer in use. electronic media conlaining Slate of
New Hampshim data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program'
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
aanittzaiion. or otherwise physically deslroying - the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800*88. Rev 1. Gu'idelines
for Media Sanltizatiori, National fnsiitute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
beparlmenl of Commerce. Jha Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide writlen certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include ail details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been properly deslrc^ed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for. retention requirements will be jointly
evatualed by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless olherMse'spectfied. within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Conlrad, Contracted agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Oata-qsing a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Conirect. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY *" " .

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard tt\e OHHS data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or Hies, as follows: t -

1. The Contractor wm maintain proper security controls to protect Department-
conRdenlial. Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
.of conlracled services.

■ 2. The Contractor wilt maintain .policies end procedures to protect Department
confideniiai information throughout the Information lifecycte, where applicable, (from-
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).

■  - . • [tAf
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8. II the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
{8AA) wUh the Department and is responsible for mgintalnlng compliar*c© with the
agreement. , -

9. The Contractor v/dl wwk with the. De^rtmeni at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Departmenl and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risl^s, threats, and vulnerabilities that may

•c)- occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate lima frame at tha Daparlmanls discration vwlh agreamenl by
the Contractor, or (he Department may request the survey be cornpleted when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and Ihe Contractor changes.

. 10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent is •obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Llabilily. In the event of any securliy breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of Ihe breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any'damagebr loss resulting from the breach.
The Slate shall recover from (he Contractor all costs of response arxl recovery from

— 0>
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3. The Contractor wit} maintain appropriate aulh'eniication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Departmenl confidential information
where applicable. *

4. The Contractor win ensure proper security monitoring capabliilies are in.place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems end/or ■
Department confidential iriformation for.coniractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular securily awareness anif education for its End 'i
Users in supiKtri of protectirig Department conrideniial Information. ..

-V

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
■ supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a *
program of an Internal process or processes lhat defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements lhat at a minimum
match those for the Cohtractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Coniractor will work vvlih the Department to sign and comply with ail applicable •••■ ■'
Stale of New Hampshire and Department syslern.access.and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, arvd computer use agreements as part of • i
obtaining and maintaining access'to any Department system(8). Agreements will be ij'

• completed and signed by the Contractor aiwl any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized. . .

..It
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(he breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website end telephone call.center services necessary due' to .
the broach. • . •

'  • • i

12. Contractor must, cpmply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conlldenlial Information, and must in-ail other respects *'
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Induding, . i^
but not limited to, provisions of the Privecy Act of 1974 (6 U.S.C, § 552a). OHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b)i HIPAA Privacy.and Security Rules (^5
C.F.R. Parts 150 and 154) that govern protections for .individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law:

13. Contractor agrees to establish and mainlain appropria'te administrative, technical, and
ph^ical safeguards to protect the confldenliallly of the Confidential Data and lo .
prevent unauihbrlzed use or access io .lt. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements .
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology,
f^cfer to Vendor Resources/Procuremerit a! hltps//www.nh.gov/doil/vendor/lndex.htm
(or the Department of Information Technology policies,, guidelines, standards, and .
procyremeni information relating l6 vendors. * . •

14. Contraclor agrees to maintain a documented breach nolification and incident
response process. The Contractor wiii nolily the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
Stale's Security Officer of any security breach Immedialelyi at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This 'mdudes a conndentiat information breach, cdmputer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State .of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network. '!•

15. Contractor must, restrict access to ,lhe Confidenliat Data obtained under this
Contract to only those aulhorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to .
perform their ofncial duties in oonneciron with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Coniractorrhust ensure that all End Users: - *

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV' A. above, |
Implemented to protect Confidential Infofmalion iha) is furnished by OHHS - >
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. •

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

.c. ensure Ifiat laptops and other electronic devices/media conlalning PHI. PI, or --
PR are encrypted and password-protected. ' ft

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to * '*
receive such Information.

.if'
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.6. limit disclosure of ihe Confidential Informaiion lo (he extent permitted by law.

f. ConHdential Informaiion received under this Conlraci and individually
IdeniiOatile data derived from pHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and (ecKnoiogically secure from access by uneuthortzed persons^
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,^
biomelric Identifiers, elc.}.

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Dala, including any
derivative files containing personally identinable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times' when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. j

■ h. in all other instances Conndenlial Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based

.  : assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. . understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will Keep their credential information secure..

'' This applies lo credentials used-lo access the site directly or indirectly through
,  a third parly application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and comptlance of their End Users. OHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with (t^s '
Contract, including fhe privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA.
and other applicabl^laws and Fadera) regulations until such time.the Confidenlial Data
is disposed of In ac^rdance with this Contract.

V, LOSS REPORTING

The Conlractor must notify the Stale's , Privacy Officer and Security Offtcer ol any
Security incidents and Breaches Imrnedialely, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further harKiie and report incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance wilh (he agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach NoilficaUon
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. fn addition to, and
nqtwthstanding, Coniractpr's cornpliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents: j

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information Is involved In Incidents; >

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; -

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents'
and delerrnlne risk-based responses to Incidents; and

•01
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5; Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and. if so. Identify appropriate
•  Breach nollflcation melhods, liming, source, and coniems from among differwi

options, and bear costs associated wilh" the Breach notice as well as any miilgatton
,  measur^. , . ^ •

•  Incidents and/or Breaches. that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. t ' . '

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT ■ ^
A. DHHS-PrivacyOfficer: ■

DHHSPrivac^fficer@dhl)s.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:
OHHSInfotmalionSecuntyOfflce@dhhs.nh.gov ;
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